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MR. ANDERSON: Now, let's now turn to
our afternoon calendar. The only case that's on
our calendar for the afternoon is a protest
hearing. It is Case Nunber 25-PRO 00098, Trade,
| i cense nunber 99229.

Good afternoon, M. Oellana. Can you
pl ease el evate the rights of the parties in this
case?

MR, ORELLANA: Sure thing. Good
afternoon. Matthew M nora, access el evated.
Todd Si nkins, access el evated. Ran Borgersen,
access elevated. Investigator Leon Harris,
access elevated. Miurray Hood, access el evat ed.

John D Anore, access elevated. And Joe Florio,
access el evat ed.

That is all, Chairman.

MR, ANDERSON:. Thank you.

Can | have everyone on canera, please?

Al right. Let ne have --

M. Mnora, good afternoon. Can you
pl ease identify yourself for the record?

MR. M NORA: (Good afternoon. Yes, ny
nane is Matthew Mnora fromthe law firm of

Mal lios O Brien & Sandground, and we're ABCA-
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| i censed counsel for the applicant.

MR. ANDERSON:. And who is with you this
afternoon, sir? |s your client -- is your
client here?

MR. M NORA: Yes, client is here, M.
John Guggennos. And ny col | eague, Manalle
Mahnoud.

MR. ANDERSON:. So can M. @Quggennos
pl ease spell and state his nanme for the record?

MR, GUGGENMOS: Sure. John Guggennos.

Last nane is GUGGE-NMOS.

MR, ANDERSON: Ms. Mahrmoud -- is Ms.
Mahnmoud -- is she going to participate this
afternoon, or what's her -- what's her role?

MR. M NORA: She -- technical
assi stance - -

MR, ANDERSON: Ckay. Techni cal
assi st ance.

MR MNORA: -- with the --

MR. ANDERSON:. Ckay, techni cal
assi stance. Ckay.

Let ne see. It's --

M. Florio, can you identify yourself

for the record, please?

MR FLORIO Yes. M nane is Joe
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Florio. | amthe advisory nei ghborhood
comm ssi oner representing ANC 2F.

MR ANDERSON:. M. -- it's M. Sinkins,

Who is he representing?

MR SINKINS: Yes. M nane is Todd
Sinkins. | amrepresenting the group of five
prot estants.

MR. ANDERSON: Can you cone on canera
sir, since you' re not on canera?

MR SINKINS: Onh, I'msorry. Yes,
certainly. Sorry about that. | thought | was
al ready on canera.

MR. ANDERSON: All right. Fine.

So who is representing the protestant?

MR SINKINS: | am

MR. ANDERSON: Ckay. So |I'm-- oh, no.

So you're representing both the group of five
and the ANC?

MR SINKINS: No, no, no. |[|'mjust
representing the group of five.

MR. ANDERSON: Now, | know specifically
at the -- at the status hearing, protest status
hearing, | said because there is nore than one
protestant that the parties need to go to --

jointly agree who is going to represent the
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parties at the protest hearing.

So the way -- the structure of this

hearing is that the Board will call its wtness.
After the Board call its witness, then the
applicant or the licensee will present its case,
and the protestant will present its case after
that. So you have enough tinme for you guys to
deci de who is going to represent the protestant
In this case.

So we're not going to have two separate
cases in a sense that the group of five of them
Wil present a case and then the ANC present a
case. |It's going to be one case with one person
representing the protestant group. Dd I --

MR SINKINS: Then I'lIl need to go chat
with Joe Florio.

MR, ANDERSON: |'m sorry?

MR, SINKINS: Then I'll need to chat
with Joe Florio. That was never our
under st andi ng.

MR, ANDERSON:. | -- if you were -- were
you at the protest hearing status hearing, sir?

MR. SINKINS: Yeah, absolutely.

MR. ANDERSON:. Well, that is -- if |

don't have -- | don't want to go pull up the
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transcript. |'Il ask -- I will ask for a copy
of the transcript, and I am99.9 -- 99.9 percent
positive that | specifically instructed the
parties at the protest hearing status that you

must do that.

So I'mgoing to -- I'"'magoing to ask for
a copy of the transcript, and if I my -- if
that was an error on ny part, | will apol ogize.

But 1"mgoing to ask for the Agency to provide
me a copy of the transcript, and then I wll --
"1l reviewit, and I wll --

But anyway, you have sone tine. |f |
made an error, then we'll revisit that. But as
| said before, since the protestant goes second,
you do have sone tinme, but | wll nake sure that
| did not make an error when | spoke to you guys
when | gave the instructions for the protest
hearing at the protest hearing status.

Al right. Hold on.

Al right. Al right. So -- but I'm
requesting a copy of the transcript, so when |
receive it, I wll -- "Il reviewit.

Al right. So the way this hearing
will go, then, the applicant will have an

opportunity to provide an openi ng statenent,
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then the protestant will provide its opening
st at enent .

The Board then will call its wtness,
which is the investigator who did a -- who
drafted the case report. Excuse ne. The Board
wi || ask questions off -- the Board will ask

questions of the investigator, of his report,

then the licensee will have an opportunity to
ask questions of the protestant -- |I'msorry, of
the licensee -- | amsorry. The applicant --
the licensee wll have an opportunity to ask

gquestions of the investigator regarding the
contents of his case report.

After the licensee has had an
opportunity to ask questions, then the
protestant will have an opportunity to ask
questions of the investigator.

Once that is done, then the Board w |
call -- the licensee wll present its case, and
then after the |icensee presents its case, the
protestant will have an opportunity to present
Its case.

| want the parties to be specific what
it is that they are asking. |If they -- if --

but at |east fromthe protestants' perspective,

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N DD MDD P P P PP PP PP PP PP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b wWw N B+, O

are you asking us not to renew the |license or
are you saying that, okay, the |icense can be
renewed wi th additional conditions?

So -- and I -- I'"lIl ask the protestants
what is their -- what is their position? 1Is it
the position that you' re asking the Board not to
renew the license, or are you asking the Board
to renew the |license wwth conditions?

|"'masking M. Florio and M. Sinkins.

Crickets --

MR SINKINS: I'msorry. W were just
conferring, so apologize. The -- | amgoing to
take the lead in representing the protestants.

MR. ANDERSON: All right. That's fine.

But no, the question | was asking, sir, was,
what is it -- what is being asked of the Board?

| s the Board asked -- being asked not to renew
the license, or is the Board being asked to
renew the license with conditions?

MR SINKINS: So our positionis, we
want the application denied as submtted, but we
woul d not oppose an approval with nodified
conditions with respect to occupancy and hours
of operation of the summer garden.

MR ANDERSON: Well, | nean, that is
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fine. You can present it. | was just asking --
so if the Board -- if the position was that,
okay, we agree that the Iicense would be
renewed, then I -- we could sonewhat truncate
the hearing. But since that is not the
position, fine, we'll have the full hearing. So
that's fine.

MR. SINKINS: Ckay.

MR. ANDERSON: Yeah, that's fine. I'm
still waiting for the Agency to provide -- but
anyway.

So we'll start with you, M. --

Any other prelimnary matters before we
start the case?

MR M NORA: W just wanted to -- for
-- as a prelimnary matter, just clarify and
confirmthe protest issues are peace, order, and
quiet related only to the expanded sunmer
garden, as outlined in the group of WIllison
Condo Residents' protest letter.

MR. ANDERSON: M. -- M. Sinkins, is
it that --

MR SINKINS: I'msorry. | didn't
catch the first part of that question.

MR. ANDERSON: M. M nora?
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MR MNORA: W just wanted to --

MR. ANDERSON: Go ahead, M. M nora.

MR MNCORA: The -- we just wanted to
confirmthat the protest issues are based on
peace, order, and quiet as it relates to the
expanded sumrer garden only, as outlined in New
W1 lison Condom ni um G oup Residents' protest
letter.

MR, SINKINS: Yes. Qur protest is
related to the noise and its effect on the
qui et, enjoynent of the neighbors related to the
use of the summer garden for Trade.

MR. M NORA: Thank you.

MR. ANDERSON: So what is it -- what is
it that -- what is the agreenent?

MR. SINKINS: There is not --

MR. ANDERSON: What's the date?

MR SINKINS: | don't think there is
agreenent. | think we just -- she just asked ne
to clarify the nature and -- and extent of our
protest, which relates to the -- which is driven
by the noise that originates fromthe sumrer
garden behind Trade, and in particular since its
hours and its occupancy expanded about 18 nonths

ago.
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11
MR. ANDERSON: All right. That is

fine. Al right. | stand corrected. | -- it

was ny understanding that this matter would --

was not going to pursue -- we were not going to

have a protest hearing on this matter, because |

t hought that the folks were very close to a

settl ement agreenent, and so therefore, | did

not give the instructions at the protest hearing

status, but | -- that just rem nds ne that,
whet her or not the parties -- just instruct the
Board of their -- what is going to occur.

| "' m al ways going to remnd the parti es,
especially when there's nore than one party
involved, that if this nmatter goes to a hearing,
then the parties would have to -- the
protestants woul d have to desi gnate who was
going to represent the protestant at the
heari ng.

So as | stated before, | did not do
that at this -- at the pre-hearing -- at the
show cause hearing. |'msorry. The protest
status hearing because in -- | assuned
I ncorrectly based on what was being provided --
was that this case woul d have been settled, so

that was ny apol ogies for not giving the proper
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12
I nstructions. Sorry.

Al right. Al right. So, M. Mnora,
do you wish to provide an openi ng statenent

MR M NORA: Sure. (Qoviously, evidence
Is going to show today that the |icensee has an
extensive history of responsible operations at
this | ocation.

The summer garden hours have been 1:45
during the -- until 1:45 during the week, 2:45
on the weekends in 2018 until 2025, of which
case, we got -- we were able to -- excuse ne.
Until 2023, and then basically done operating at
2:00 aam and 3:00 aam So just a 15-mnute
difference. So essentially, for eight years
we' ve had these hours. W have no incidents.
There's zero ABCA incidents. The violations
history is conpletely clean. And so there --
whil e there m ght be disturbances that are being
heard by residences, they cannot attribute those
to Trade. And to the extent that there are
uni dentified human voi ces, even if they were
attributable to Trade, that is outside the scope
of D.C. Code 25-725. So we're asking for the
ABC Board to process and approve the renewal

application as submtted, and w thout further
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conditions or restrictions, other than those in
the current settlenment agreenent.

MR, ANDERSON:. Well, thank you.

M. Sinkins, do you wish to make an
openi ng statenent now? O you could defer until
you present your case.

MR. SINKINS: | can nake the opening
statenent now. M nane is Todd Sinkins. |
represent a group of five or nore residents:

Law ence Watson, Murray Hood, Louise Hood, Tom
Steyer (phonetic) Marker Martinez (phonetic)
Randal | Borgersen, John D Anore, and Kate Casl ow
(phonetic), who are protesting the renewal of
Trade's license as submtted. |'m also standing
in for the ANC 2F foll ow ng discussions in this
heari ng.

The protestants seek denial of the
application in Protest Case Number 25-PRO 00098
concerning Trade. As submtted, the issues
identified for resolution include the hours of
operation of the outdoor patio and the occupancy
| evel of the outdoor patio.

First, the 2024 expansion of the summer
garden and the increase in hours of operation to

2:30 a.m had deprived nearby residents,
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i ncluding those living in the WIIlison

Condom nium of the ability to sleep during
Trade's hours of operation. The noise enmanating
fromthe expanded exterior area, conbined with

| at e- ni ght operations, has nade nornmal rest

I npossible for those living in close proximty
to the facility.

Second, these changes in summer garden
occupancy and hours violate residents' right of
qui et enjoynent of their honmes. The excessive
| ate-night activity and anplified patron noise
fromthe outdoor space intrude upon residenti al
l'iving roons and bedroons well beyond what is
reasonable in a m xed-use environnent.

Third, Trade has not undertaken any
effective mtigation efforts to reduce the
exterior garden noise. There's been no
meani ngful i npl enentation of noise controls to
sufficiently address the | ate-ni ght
di sturbances. Now, no barriers have been
installed that have been effective. There's
been no reorientation or operational
restrictions that actually provide sound
abatenment for the transm ssion of noise to

adj acent hones. Instead, Trade's neasures have

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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actually only served to anplify the noi se and
project it towards the protestants' honmes. As a
result, these efforts have sinply exacerbated
t he probl em

Fourth, the residents cannot enjoy
their outdoor areas and patios, or even the
interior of the units, because of Trade's
out door noi se. Many residents have reported
t hey cannot hear others in civil conversation
during Trade's operating hours, even if they're
inside their living roons with the w ndows
closed. This is a sustained and ongoi ng
interference with daily life. 1It's not just an
occasi onal interference.

We're not asking the Board to shutter
Trade. We're asking the Board to deny the
application as submtted and conditi on any
renewal on concrete, enforceable reductions in
noi se that restore residential quiet enjoynent.
Specifically, we request a reduction in the
summer garden's occupancy | evels and reduction
in closing hours to 10: 00 p.m on weekdays and
11: 00 p.m on weekends. These requests are
narrowmy tailored to address these issues that

are before the Board.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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The scope of this protest squarely
concerns the outdoor patio's hours of operation
and occupancy levels. Relief we seek aligns
with those issues and is necessary to prevent
ongoi ng | ate-ni ght noi se inpacts that have made
sl eep and nornal conversation inpossible for
nearby residents and violates their very basic
rights of quiet enjoynent of their hones. For
t hese reasons, we respectfully ask that the
Board deny the renewal application as submtted,
and, if renewed, inpose occupancy and hour
limtations as we stated above to protect the
publ i ¢ peace, order, and quiet of the
nei ghbor hood.

Thank you.

MR. ANDERSON: All right. Thank you.
Al right. The Board wll call its first
Wi tness, and that is the investigator, M.
Harri s.

M. Harris, can you state -- can you
rai se your right hand, please?

VWHEREUPOQON,

LEON HARRI S
was called as a witness by the Board and, after

havi ng been duly sworn, was exam ned and
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17
testified as foll ows:

EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ANDERSON:

Q Can you state and spell your nane for
the record?

A. My nane is Leon Harris, L-E-ON, |ast
name HA-RR-1-S.

Q And where are you currently enpl oyed,
sir?

A. | amcurrently enployed at the
Al cohol i ¢ Beverage and Cannabi s Adm ni stration
for the past 17 nonths.

Q And what are your duties and
responsibility at the Agency?

A. | conduct inspections and
I nvestigations of ABC-licensed establishnents
within the District of Col unbia.

Q And so you're -- you said you have been
with the Agency for the past 17 nonths. So can
you quantify about how many inspections, if any,
you have done in this period?

A. Inspections, if -- if you want to
I ncl ude reqgul atory inspections when we go to
different ABC-licensed special establishnents,

just to put a -- a hard nunber on it, roughly
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200 to 250, plus or m nus.

Q Have you ever participated in a protest
heari ng before, sir?

A Yes, sir,

Q OCkay. Are you famliar with this
est abl i shnent, Trade?

A Yes, sir,

Q And how did you becone famliar with
this establishnent?

A. | conducted a protest investigation on
Trade | ocated at 1408-1410 14th Street
Nor t hwest .

Q And so -- just prior to conducting this
-- the investigation, did you have any previous
know edge of this establishnent?

A. No, sir.

Q GCkay. D d you have an opportunity to
speak to the parties in this case?

A Yes, sir, | did.

Q Who did you speak to? O -- do you

have a copy of your -- do you have a copy of
your record -- of your case report?
A. | do. Yes, sir.

Q Do you have the ability to share your

screen wwth the case report?
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A. Sure.
MR. ANDERSON: M. Oellana, can you
pl ease allow M. Harris to share his screen?
MR. ORELLANA: Access granted.
MR. ANDERSON: Thank you, sir.
THE W TNESS: Do you see ny screen
okay?
MR. ANDERSON: No, sir, we're not
seei ng your screen.
THE WTNESS: Excuse ne for one second.
MR. ANDERSON: Wile we're waiting, |
woul d ask all parties to nmute their lines so we
don't hear any extraneous noi se. Thank you.
BY MR ANDERSON:
Q Ckay. You're now sharing your screen,
sir. Can you identify the docunent that's on
t he screen?
A. This is ny protest report of In Stereo,
LLC. And they're trading as Trade.
Q Ckay, fine. Al right, sir. [|'d ask
you who did you speak to?
A. | spoke to the group of five or nore
represented by M. Todd A Sinkins, Esqg., and
M. Joe Florio, the chairman of the Advisory

Nei ghbor hood Conm ssion 2F, or the ANC 2F, and
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M. Mnora, who was the applicant's attorney.

Q So what information about this protest
were you able to gather in speaking to the
pr ot est ant ?

A.  So when | was speaking to the
protestant, | went to Trade -- let ne get ny
dates and everything together, on, |ooks |like
Decenber 10th, 2025. | emailed the applicant's
attorney, M. Matthew Mnora. M. Mnora
responded the sane day wth a detail ed account
of the residents of the WIIlison Condom ni um
Unit Owners' Associ ation conpl ai ni ng about the
peace, order, and quiet of Trade.

According to M. Mnora, quote, "O the
400-plus residential units of the north side of
the 1400 bl ock of Rhode |sland Avenue Nort hwest,
many of which are closer to Trade than the
prot estant group, only eight individuals
representing five units, which is less than 2
percent of the nearby units, have conpl ai ned
about noi se emanating from Trade' s expanded
sumrer garden operations, despite not having
recei ved any noi se conplaints fromresidents
until the beginning of Trade's expanded sunmer

garden operations, and only have received
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conplaints fromthe eight individuals that are
part of the protestant group.” ANC 2F al so
protested this renewal based on the negative
I npact of peace, order, and quiet of the
expanded sunmer garden.

M. Mnora al so provided a noise
anal ysis that took place on Cctober 15th and
Cctober 17th, 2025, from T Trinity Consultants.
According to those results, which | have in ny
exhibits, which I'll explain to you | ater on,
gquote, "The nost pertinent data to refer to in
regard to a potential violation of noise code is
the nightti me neasurenents taken while Trade was
open and the wi ndow at the WIIlison was open.
Wt hout any additional architectural
nodi fications to Trade, to the Trade patio, or
its perinmeter, it is unlikely that further noise
reduction can be achieved fromthe source.
O her options for -- for renediation may incl ude
closing the patio at an agreed tine, or
architectural upgrades to the condo wi ndows such
as upgraded w ndow gl ass or sound isol ati on-
rated curtains that are designed to reduce noise
transm ssion. |t should be noted, however, that

any w ndow nodi fi cati ons woul d have no inpact on

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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transmtted noise into the WIIlison when the
wi hdows are open."

On Friday, Decenber 19th, 2025, |
received an email from M. Todd Sinkins, who
represents the group of five or nore, who stated
that the group's conpl aint of peace, order, and
quiet was still the main concern. Additionally,
M. Sinkins states, quote, "The first source of
noi se was -- was caused by increased capacity in
the outdoor patio area and hours of operation
that extended to 2:30. The noise fromthis
patio area is keeping the residents of the
WIllison up into the early hours of the norning.

Al so, the noise fromthe speakers has becone
| oud and al so i s keepi ng people awake until the
early hours."

Al'l parties acknow edge that there was
a nedi ation hearing that was schedul ed for
January 8th of 2026. On Thursday, January 8th,
2026, | reached out to M. M nora about the
nmedi ati on hearing again. M. Mnora stated that
the -- that progress was nmade and they intend to
request that the Board postpone the protest
hearing further, to allow themto explore sone

addi tional sound mtigation neasures and their
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ef fecti veness.

Q Al right. So tell us alittle bit
about what type of nei ghborhood this is?

A. So Trade is in an ARCH 3 (phonetic)
zone, and is intended to permt nediumdensity
m xed- use devel opnent with a focus on
enpl oynment. The establishnment Trade, is a
medi um si zed establishnent in a heavy- popul at ed
area | ocated between P Street Northwest and
Rhode | sl and Avenue Northwest in between a T-
Mobile retail store and the Tobacco Bazaar.

Q Approximately how many ABC |icenses are
in this area?

A. According to the District of Colunbia
CGeographic Informati on Systens, or S, there
are 39 |licensed ABC establishnments operating
within 1,200 feet of Trade. Qut of those 39 ABC
establishnments, 22 have settl enent agreenents.
Excuse ne for one second. These are -- if you
can see ny screen, these are all the nearby
establishments within 1,200 feet of Trade.

Q Yes, sir. There -- you said there are
39 establishnents.

A 39. Yes, sir. Twenty-two of those

establ i shnments have settl enent agreenents, and
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14 of those establishnments have ot her
endorsenents. There are no schools wi thin 400
feet of Trade. |In the parking during the
dayti me hours, there was anple parking in front
of and around Trade. During the nighttine
nmoni toring hours, parking becones -- becones
much nore difficult due to pedestrians, food
trucks, and further foot traffic fromthe
surroundi ng establishnents.

Q Now, what are the hours of operation of
this establishnment?

A. These are the hours right here. The
hours of operations Sunday through Thursday are
from11:00 a.m to 2:00 aam On Friday and
Saturday, they are 11:00 a.m to 3:00 a.m The
hours of sales are the sane, and their
entertai nnment Sunday through Thursday are 6:00
p.m to 1:45 a.m Friday and Saturday, 6:00
p.m to 2:45 a.m Their summer garden, the
hours of operation are from Sunday to Thursday,
11:00 a.m to 2:00 a.m Friday and Sat urday,
11: 00 a.m to 3:00 a.m, and it's also their
summer garden hours as well.

Q But let nme ask a question: Do you know

--and |l -- I"'m-- 1 don't recall seeing this in
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your report. Do you know what is -- what's the
capacity of the summer garden?

A. | can pull up their alcohol |icense and
| can give you that nunber.

Q But I"'mtrying to find out if this is
-- i f you had know edge of the capacity of the
sumer garden and what was the summer garden?

It -- apparently, the -- what |'m being told,
there was a change, so I'mjust trying to find
out. If you know. |If you don't know, then you
don't know.

A. Then | -- | don't know off the top of
nmy head, sir.

Q Al right. That's fine. D d you or
anot her ABCA i nvestigator have an opportunity to
visit this establishnent?

A. Correct. Yes, sir. Let ne get you
that information right now. From Friday,
Decenber 12th, 2025, to Saturday, January 3rd,
2026, Trade was nonitored nine tines by ABCA
personnel. On ny screen here are the tines and
dates that either nyself or ny other ABCA
I nvestigators went to Trade to nonitor. During
those nonitoring hours, no trash, litter,

loitering, or violations -- ABCA violations were
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found during those tines.

During the nonitoring hours -- during
the daytine nonitoring hours, parking around
Trade was busy but not overcrowded due to the
surroundi ng establishnents such as Wol e Foods.

Down the alleyway on 15th Street, at the back
end of the WIIlison Condonm ni um parking was
readily available. During the nighttine
nmoni toring hours, several pedestrians and at
| east three food trucks were observed parked
out si de of the establishnment. The parking was
very difficult, but this was not due to Trade
bei ng over capacity or people wanting entry into
Trade. In that sanme alleyway, parking was
unattai nabl e and cars were |ined up behind the
Whol e Foods and parked in the designated parking
-- parking areas.

Q Al right. Approximtely how many
times did you personally visit the
est abl i shment ?

A. | personally visited about five tines.

Q And when is it that you personally
visited the establishnment?

A. | was there Decenber 12th, Decenber
17th, the 19th, and the 20th in that early
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nmorning hours from1:00 to 1:30.

Q Solet's -- I know you said there were
no -- | guess you -- what does NAV stand for?

A. No -- no alcohol violations found.

Q Ckay. So tell -- or say -- you went

there on Saturday, Decenber 20th, between -- you
were there between 1:00 -- 1:00 a.m and 1: 307

A. Correct.

Q Do you recall what was going on in that
period of tinme when -- while you were there?

A. | was there to nonitor the area for any
signs of peace, order, and quiet that could
effectively affect Trade. | was there to
nmonitor the general area to see if there was any
fights, pedestrians wal king around that were not
supposed to be there, loitering, anything that
coul d have a negative inpact on the safety and
security of the surrounding area representing --
as far as ABCA is concerned.

Q But | guess what I'mtrying to find
out, was the establishnent open?

A.  Yes, sir. It was open.

Q Dd-- were they aware that you were
comng to nonitor the establishnent?

A. No, sir. | did not make contact.
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O her than the tinme | nade contact earlier in
t he beginning of ny protest, | had no reason to
make any further contact wth the -- the
establishnment. Qher than take pictures and
things of that particular nature.

Q And did you observe what was goi ng on
in the sunmer garden?

A. Yes, sir, | did. | have a picture of
t he sumrer garden.

Q Al right. Once we go forward, ']

ask you about that. | want to --
A, Kkay.
Q -- 1 want to ask you sone nore

guestions about that. Wre you able to receive
any records regarding calls for service to this
est abl i shnent ?

A. Yes. There was no -- there would have

been no calls for service at all for Trade. And

t hey have no investigative history to talk -- to
speak of.
Q And do you know how -- do you know how

|l ong this establishnment has been in operation?
O they have had a -- an ABCA license? |[|f you
-- when | ask you question, if you don't know

t he answer, you can say you don't know. But --
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A | -- 1 do not know that answer, how
| ong they've been in operation for.

Q Al right. Let's go through -- let's
go through the exhibits that you have. Can you
identify the exhibits that attached to your
report?

A Yes, sir. So Exhibit 1 here is the
group of five protesting petitions submtted by
the residents of the WIlison Condom nium This
particular one is fromM. Todd A Sinkins, the
-- the lawer for the group. This is the actual
file petition. This is nmy first exhibit.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.

1 for identification.)

THE WTNESS: This is the -- the
exhibit that's signed fromthe fol ks at the
condom ni um

Exhibit 2 is the ANC s protest petition
subm tted by Conm ssioner Chair Joe Florio.
Exhibit 3 is a noise anal ysis conducted by
Trinity Consultants.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunents were marked as Protestants' Exhibits

No. 2-3 for identification.)
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BY MR ANDERSON:
Q And where did you -- who provided this
to you?
A. | believe that was the protestants'
| awyer who woul d provide that information to ne.
Q Ckay.
A. Exhibit 4 is a copy of the D.C zoning
map where Trade is at.

Let me flip this around for you guys to
see.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
4 for identification.)

THE WTNESS: Exhibit 5is the S map
for the ABC establishnment within 400 feet. In
the center here would be Trade. And there is no
ABC established within 400 feet. This is that
sane map. ABC -- these are the ABC
establishments within 1,200 feet.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent were marked as Protestants' Exhibit
Nos. 5-6 for identification.)

THE WTNESS: Exhibit 7 is a Google
Street View of Trade from across the street

taken in August 2025.
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(Wher eupon, the above-referred to

docunment was narked as Protestants' Exhibit No.

7 for identification.)
BY MR ANDERSON:

Q VWiich one of the buildings is Trade?

A. Trade is right here in the mddl e,
ri ght here.

Q GCay. Oh, the -- Trade -- okay, that
can see, behind the tree. kay.

A. Behind the tree. Yes, sir.

Q Ckay.

A. Exhibit 8 is the photo of Trade/Bl ack
Wi skey building fromacross the street. This
Is the nost updated picture right here. Trade
is right here, with all the Hall oween
decorations up right here.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to

docunment was narked as Protestants' Exhibit No.

8 for identification.)
BY MR ANDERSON:

Q Ckay.

A. To the right would be the Tobacco
Bazaar, and to the left over here would be the
T- Mobi | e phone store.

Exhibit 9 is a Google Street View of
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t he establishnent across the street from Trade,
taken in August 2025.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
9 for identification.)

BY MR ANDERSON:

Q \VWiere is this -- where is this
est abl i shnment | ocated? The address.

A. The address is 1408-1410 14th Street
Nor t hwest .

Q Ckay. Al right.

A. This is the main entrance to Trade and
Bl ack Wi skey. Exhibit 11 is the all eyway
between P Nails and (inaudible) to Trade summer
garden, taken fromP Street Northwest and A d
Dom ni on National Bank.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
11 for identification.)

THE WTNESS: This is the alleyway
t hr ough here.

Exhi bit Nunber 12 is the all eyway
directly outside of Trade sunmer garden.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to

docunment was nmarked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
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12 for identification.)

THE WTNESS: Exhibit 13 is the D-- D
as in Delta, 50-D, as in Delta, 5X, as in X-ray,
the Metrobus stop located on 14th Street
Nor t hwest .

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
13 for identification.)

THE WTNESS: This is the C, as in
Charlie, 91 Metrobus stop located on P Street
Nor t hwest .

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
14 for identification.)

THE WTNESS: Exhibit 15 is the photo
of a Capital Bikeshare |ocated on Rhode Island
Avenue Nort hwest .

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
15 for identification.)

THE W TNESS: Nunber 16 (i naudi bl e)

I nsi de the summer garden.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to

docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.

16 for identification.)
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THE WTNESS: Exhibit 17 is photo -- is
a photo of just outside Trade sumrer garden and
the alleyway. There are two doubl e doors here
as wel | .

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
17 for identification.)

THE W TNESS: Exhibit 18 is inside of
Trade fromin -- in -- fromthe entryway show ng
t he bar during operations.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
18 for identification.)

THE WTNESS: Exhibit 19 is inside
Trade, past their bar, |leading to Trade's dance
floor during operations.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
19 for identification.)

THE WTNESS: Exhibit 20 is Trade's
main -- main floor dance -- main dance fl oor
during operations.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.

20 for identification.)
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THE WTNESS: Exhibit 21 is a
downstairs area of Trade showing a full bar with
limted seating during the operations.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
21 for identification.)

THE W TNESS: Exhibit 22 is Trade's
summer garden during nighttinme nonitoring hours.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
22 for identification.)

THE WTNESS: Exhibit 23 is a photo of
the parking at the back end of the WIlison
Condom ni um | ocated down the alleyway of 15th
Street Northwest during daytinme nonitoring.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunent was marked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
23 for identification.)

THE WTNESS: And ny | ast exhibit,
Nunmber 24, is a photo of parking at the back end
of the WIIlison Condom nium | ocated down the
al l eyway of 15th Street during nighttine
noni tori ng hours.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to

docunment was nmarked as Protestants' Exhibit No.
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24 for identification.)
BY MR ANDERSON:
Q Do you know how -- approxi mately how
far this condomniumis fromthe establishment?
A I -- I"'mnot too sure as far as the
di stance goes. But you can definitely see, from
the sumrer garden to the WIIlison Condom ni um
It's not far at all. |It's less than a football
field, maybe 100 yards, 50 yards, sonething
around that range. It's not far at all.
MR, ANDERSON:. Ckay. All right. Thank
you, sir. You can close your screen.
Any questions by any Board nenbers?
No? M. M nora?
MR. M NORA: Yes. Thank you.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR M NORA
Q So, M. Harris, you said you visited
Trade during various tines throughout the
eveni ngs, the days in Decenber 2025. Do you
know i f the summer garden was active nost of the
time, or just in the exhibit in the photos --
or, excuse ne, the exhibit in the case report?
A. Just in that case report. During the

noni toring hours the summer garden wasn't
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extrenely active. It had a -- a few people
t here.

Q So -- but when it was full, you --
sorry, you -- so the tines -- there's been tines

you' ve been there where it's been, you know, in

your mnd, pretty full. Maybe not nmax capacity,
but pretty full, correct?
A Yes, sir.

Q So you see that it was busy. You did
not -- you've been there when it was busy. You
noted in your report there were no ABCA
vi ol ations found, correct?

A. Correct.

Q So do you recall hearing anything from
the speakers while you were in the sumer
gar den?

A. | do not recall.

Q So then you didn't hear anything from
t he speakers. You had a busy sumrer garden with
peopl e, no ABCA viol ati ons observed the entire
time; that's correct?

A. That's correct, sir.

Q Gkay. Thank you very nuch, |nspector.

Appreciate it.
A. Yes, sir. Thank you.
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MR M NORA: No further --
MR. ANDERSON:. All right. M. Sinkins,
| think? Yeah.
MR. SINKINS: Yeah, | just have one or
two questions. Thank you.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR SI NKI NS:

Q M. Harris, when you visited the Trade
establishnment, did you have occasion to go to
any of the | ocations where the protestants have
their hone? Did you go to the WIIlison

Condom niumand listen to noise fromthat

| ocati on?
A. | did not go to the WIlison
Condom nium | was, in -- in ny opinion, close

enough to where the WIlison Condom ni um was and
where Trade was in the back alley to hear any
ki nd of abnormal |oud noi ses.

Q You -- you've never been in a unit in
the WIllison, correct?

A. That's correct.

Q GCkay. Al right. And you didn't take
any noi se readings while you were present, did
you?

A. | personally did not take any noise
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assessnments or --
Q Ckay.
A.  -- anything of that nature.

MR SINKINS: Al right. Thank you.
That -- that's all. Thank you very nuch.

MR. ANDERSON: M. Harris, are you
aware of any noise -- you stated there, this
establ i shnment doesn't have an investigative
history; is that correct?

THE WTNESS: That's correct, sir.

MR. ANDERSON:. And to you, what does
that nean, that it doesn't have an investigative
hi story?

THE WTNESS: As far as ABCA is
concerned, we have not received any sort of
noi se conpl aints or any other types of
conplaints for us to go to Trade, speak to an
Agency manager or owner and assess a situation
that could be related to an ABCA viol ati on.

MR, ANDERSON: Ckay, sir. | don't have
any other questions for you. Thank you very
much for your testinony today.

THE WTNESS: Yes, sir. Thank you.

MR, ANDERSON. Al right. How nany

W t nesses do you have, M. M nora?
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MR. M NORA: Just M. Guggennos.

MR. ANDERSON: Ckay. | think there --
|"mgetting sone feedback. | know that you --
your office likes to use the conference room
but I -- how far are you fromthe m crophone?

MR. M NORA: \Wiere is the m crophone?

Ch, | can certainly nove closer.

MR. ANDERSON: Yeah, because | -- there
Is sone type of feedback that I want to make
sure that we can clearly hear everything that's
goi ng on.

MR MNORA: Is it better if I'm
sitting here?

MR. ANDERSON: It -- it's better. Al
right, so who's your first w tness?

MR M NCORA: M. John Quggennos.

MR. ANDERSON. M. Quggennpbs, can you
rai se your right hand, please?

MR GUGGENMOS:  Yes.

VWHEREUPOQON,

JOHN GUGGENMOS
was called as a wtness by counsel for the
Applicant and, after having been duly sworn, was
exam ned and testified as follows:

MR. ANDERSON. All right. Your
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W tness, sir.
MR. M NORA: Thank you.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR M NORA:

Q M. Guggennos -- M. GQuggennpbs, what is
your relationship to Trade?

A. Yes, |I'mthe -- the owner and the
oper ati ng manager.

Q And how | ong have you lived in Logan
Crcle?

A. Mwved to Logan Circle in July 13th,
1988, so 38 years.

Q Ckay. And besides Trade, have you been
associated wth other ABCA |icensed
establishments in D.C. ?

A.  Yes. About a dozen. | have 36 years
of history. Started in 1990, so com ng up on
the 36th anni versary.

Q Can you list sone of the
est abl i shnment s?

A.  For sure. Tracks Town, Cobalt Soul,

Lef onda (phonetic), one of it was Pal o Nunber
Ni ne.
Q So you -- you've been doing this for

decades?
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A.  Oh, yes.

Q You have, you know, decades of
experi ence managi ng bars that have outdoor
areas, that have dancing, that have nusic, that
have entertai nnent, correct?

A Yes.

Q Have you ever held political office?

A. | was at ANC for six years and | was
chair and vice chair which would be called the
D.C. ANC political office --

Q That's okay.

A.  -- (inaudible).

Q And what -- just to be clear, which ANC
were you part of?

A.  2F. This one.

Q This ANC? ay. And can you just --
again, for the record, just what's Trade's
| ocati on and address?

A. Sure. It's 1408 1410 14th Street.

Q Sure. And about how far would you
approximate this location is fromthe WIIlison
Condom ni um bui | di ng?

A. 200 feet. You know, you have to go
down the alley and turn before you then start

headed towards the WIIi son.
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Q Sure. And when did Trade open up to
the public?

A. Decenber 2015.

Q Al right. And do you recall the hours
on the ABCA license Settlenent Agreenent for the
I nsi de when they first opened?

A. Yes. It was 1:45 from Sunday to
Thur sday, 2:45 on Saturday and Sunday, and then
the sumrer garden was 11: 00 and 12: 00.

Q That's ending at 11:00 p.m --

A, Yes.
Q -- on the weekend?
A.  Yes.

Q Ending at 11: 00 weekends, okay. And
then in 2018, did you seek an anendnent to the
settl enent agreenent?

A.  Yes, we did. W sought to nodify the
summer garden hours to match the interior hours.

Q So then as a result of that, the summer
garden hours becane 1:45 and 2:45 cl osures?

A. That's correct. That's correct.

Q Ckay. And what were sone of the
concerns that brought you to wanting to seek the
anended Settl enent Agreenent to change these

hour s?
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A. There was, you know - -

MR. ANDERSON: |I'msorry to interrupt.
When was it -- when was this changed? Wen was
this changed again? |I'msorry. | apol ogi ze.

MR. M NORA: 2018.

MR. ANDERSON:. Ckay.

MR. M NORA: There was an anendnent to
the settlenment agreenent in 2018 that all owed
for the later hours outside.

MR. ANDERSON:  All right. Thank you.
| apol ogi ze.

THE WTNESS: There were a -- a few
things we were trying to address. One, there
were issues. You know, the neighbors were
havi ng that people, when they woul d go outside
and snoke, that they would be --

BY MR M NORA

Q Sorry to cut -- outside the front or
the rear of the establishnent?

A. The front.

Q The front, on 14th Street?

A, Yes.

Q Gkay. Thank you.

A. But they would go around this street

onto Rhode Island or -- | nean, you can't
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control themonce they -- they go out. So you
know, that was part of it, is that if we could

al l ow snoking in the very back, then, you know,

at those late night hours, it -- it cut down on
people on the street. It also allowed us even
at that tine toreally look at a -- a soft

cl osi ng because when -- | nean.

Q Can you descri be what a soft closing

A. Yes. That, you know, we closed certain
areas of the bar to let it just kind of
naturally cl ose down instead of a mass pushing a
| arge group out. And Trade, quite frankly, the
summer garden has, even at -- at that point was
40 percent, 45 percent of the total capacity.

So if you stopped at 11:00 or 12:00, you were
pushing a | ot of people out onto the street, or
i f you could accommpdate theminside, but doing
the later achieved both. It allowed for the
soft closing, which over the years of
experience, that's been the best, |east
I npactful on the nei ghborhood to control noi se.
It also took the snokers off this -- our
snokers off the street. And that, you know,

definitely had sone effect.
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Q So this was done with an eye of
mai nt ai ni ng greater control of the crowd towards
the end of the evening, to sone degree?

A. No, absolutely. And it's -- you know,
again, the soft closingis -- is critical.

Q So then this is 2018 when you had the
new hours started on the outdoor sumrer garden.

Let's just skip a little head to the end of

2020. Do you recall another establishnment
applying for an ABCA |license on the 1408 14th
Street premises in the fall of 20207

A. Yes, it was next door. It was Karaoke
Cowboy.

Q And do you recall what its occupancy
and hours were in its ABCA |icense?

A. | knowit was full hours and the sumrer
garden was - -

Q If you don't know --

A. |'mnot sure exactly.

MR MNORA: So w'd like to I ntroduce

Protestants' Exhibit -- or excuse ne,
Applicant's Exhibit 11 Page 1.
MR. ANDERSON: M. -- do you want to

share your screen so | can see that because |

don't have your exhibits?
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So, M. Oellana, allow M. Mnora to
share a screen if he so desires. Kkay.

MR M NORA: Exhibit 11.

MR, ORELLANA: Yeah, just a mnute.
BY MR M NORA:

Q Page 1. Yeah. So Karaoke Cowboys'
2025 renewal application that shows that it had
hours of entertainnent to 8:00 a.m to 2:00 a.m
-- excuse ne, 800 am to 2:00 a.m during the
week, until 3:00 a.m on the weekends and the
summer garden --

MR. M NORA: Can we scroll down.
BY MR M NORA:

Q =-- full hours, 8:00 a.m to 2:00 a. m
and 8:00 a.m to 3:00 a.m at this |ocation,
1408. And from what we could see on our end, a
protest had never been filed during that initial
application or during any renewal cycle since.
Movi ng ahead to 2023, Trade got an opportunity
to expand into 1408 prem ses because Karaoke
Cowboy is no | onger going to be com ng.

A. That's correct.

Q How did you select the sumrer gardens'
ext ended hours?

A, W tailored it exactly to what we had
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at Trade at that point and al so what they had
applied for. | nean, what they applied for
Kar aoke Cowboy was the sane, but it matched
ours, what we had done.

Q So then when you anticipated, or excuse
me, contenplated its expansion into 1408, what
were the next steps in this process? Wo were
they -- no. Oher than our firm who did you
reach out to next when it cane tine to get the
expansi on?

A.  Oh, our ANC

Q And who did you speak wi th about
getting any nodifications to the Settl enment
Agreenment and the expansi on?

A.  Comm ssi oner Florio.

Q Al right. And how soon after filing
our application did you reach out to the ANC
about this?

A | nean, it was in -- in concert, sane
time,

Q So then we had the new anended and
stated Settl enment Agreenent with the ANC support
submtted to the Board and approved. The result
was we had the hours on the outside noving 15

more mnutes to 2:00 aam and 3:00 a.m, and
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follow ng the conpletion of construction, the
addi tional capacity on the outside at 1408 and
the inside at 1408. Because we had the
Settl ement Agreenent approved, when did we start
operating in the summer garden until 2:00 and
3:00 a.m?
A. Oh, gosh. Boy, I'mreally bad with
dates. | do not (inaudible).
Q If we want, we can | ook at the accepted

current Settlenent Agreenent?

A Yes. |'msorry.

Q No, no, that's --

A, Sorry.

Q Can you take a | ook at Exhibit Nunber
47

A. Al dates since COVID run together.

Q 4. Ckay. Scroll down. See these
hours. It was July 2023, and | can tell you --

A, Yes.

Q -- we filed an application to anmend our

hours for the 15 mnutes later, shortly after
that. And by late sumer, fall, you were
operating with the full hours in 2023 on the
summer ground again. Full hours, just a 15-

m nute difference.
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A. That's correct.

Q Al right. Now, in 2025, as you're
near the end of construction, there were sone
conplications, correct?

A, Yes.

Q Wuld you say that -- to what degree
did that inpact the capacities you had pl anned?

A. It -- you know, the way that DOB
started to |l ook at, you know, three people in a
cl oset, one person in a broomcloset, that there
were non-public areas that did add to the
occupancy. And, you know, this is relatively a
-- a new change. And although |I had enail ed
both Director Hanlon and Director Msali
(phonetic) about this, we applied for a
substanti al change just because that al one threw
t he occupancy nunbers off.

Q And was that substantial change
pr ot est ed?

A. | nean, the -- yes.

Q Yes. Yes. In May 2025, another group
of WIlIlison Condom niumresidents, sone of whom
are here today, also protested this?

A, Yes.

Q D dthe ANC protest that?
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A. Not -- | don't believe so.

Q No, because the ANC actually supported
the stipulated license for that change?

A. Correct.

Q So at this point, in My 2025, the
WIllison people -- the WIlison Goup has
protested a substantial change to the interior,
even though they dropped a protest |etter about
the exterior. But at that tine, was the sumrer
garden at Trade even operating with its expanded
capacity?

A. Not with expanded capacity.

Q No. So there'd been no change in
operati ons since August 20237

A. Correct.

Q Correct. So what was the resolution of
this protest in 20257

A It was w thdrawn.

Q So when did you finally get the chance
to use the expanded summer space with its -- not
just the hours, but with the capacity?

A. W opened in June of 2025.

Q Let's talk a bit nore about the sumrer
garden itself. So when the sumer garden is

bei ng pl anned, did you consult any engi neers or
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experts about the potential for sound in the
sumrer garden?

A. Yes, we did. | nean, our architect,
ZBS, and John Ferito (phonetic) with DAS Audi o
and there were a lot of nodifications or things
that we did to the patio to -- to acconmodate
t hat .

Q So when you first opened up, can you
describe to ne a bit about what kind of
mtigations were there at the initial open day
of sumrer gardens?

A. Yes. W needed an 8-foot fence and
first off, even the material with that, we
sel ected a softer wood because that does have
slight absorbed quality versus, you know, a hard
new wood, which would really just bounce nore of
the sound. There were 4-inch posts that were
put into the concrete, so it's not just one
| ayer of the fence. There's fence on each side,
so it's a double barrier, and with the sound
buffer of the sound channel in between, you
know, the sound that conmes in, it's slightly
di spersed, and then you've got the second
barrier. Additionally, we even selected the

m d-range speakers and the placenent of it
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because those speakers, unlike other subwoofers
or bass cabinets, just don't throw the -- the
bass and the vibration. It is a small, md-
range speaker.

Q So these speakers don't have bass or
subwoofer capabilities, the speakers on the
exterior?

A.  You can -- | nean, obviously they can
pl ay bass, but these are the type that you woul d
have in -- in a restaurant.

Q Sure.

A So --

Q Not neant for, you know, DJing or
danci ng?

A. No. And that was never the intent that
we designed, it wasn't to be an outdoor
nightclub. It was an area that there was
anbi ent nusic that people wal ked into that felt
conf ortabl e.

MR MNORA: And | would like to
i ntroduce Exhibits -- Exhibit 8, Pages 1, 2, 3,
and 4, just to show what we're tal king about,
t he sumrer garden when Trade had first opened in
June 2025.
BY MR M NORA:
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Q M. Guggennbs, can you just take a | ook
at the firm Does this | ook substantially |ike
the sumer garden on Trade when you first
opened?

A, Yes.

Q Can you describe a bit nore where this
IS within Trade?

A. This is the one southern wall of the
sumer garden. You see just a little bit of the
western wall that -- where the nmural is. |
nmean, all of our summer garden is extensively
behind that 2-story building, but on that
southern side, that is the side that would be
exposed to -- to the WIllison Condom nium That
Is the area of concern.

MR M NORA: Now, could you just go to
t he next page, 2.
BY MR M NORA:

Q And this, again, sane --

A. Sane -- sane thing.

Q -- sane picture, just different angle?

kay. And the third. This is -- oops. Sorry.

Dfferent --
A. That shows just flat on that -- that
wal |, just to show that that -- that is the side
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that is open.

Q And then -- well, actually, this is
just, again, the sane sort of situation. So one
woul d think that having speakers outside woul d
i nherently make noi se that could be heard off
prem ses. So why would you have install ed
speakers outside?

A. In consultation with our sound, you
know, experts, having a small m d-range speaker,
having nore of themthat -- you know, you drive
the sound | ess than having a couple of bass
cabi nets or, you know, other boxes that you end
up pushing harder. So nore of themat a | ower
range provides a nore, you know, m xed sound
versus that | oud boom ng dance cl ub.

Q GCkay. And since the initial opening in
June, have you nade any ot her sound mtigation

efforts on the sumer garden?

A. Yes. It was always our intent to put,
like, a -- nore of a fabric or a canopy over
that -- that southern side there. But because

we had heard fromthe WIIlison Condom nium we
took the conplaints at face value and we built a
-- nore of a -- not nore of. It's a wooden

structure that -- and it's angled so that -- you
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know, that is the -- again, the way that -- to
refl ect sound back, and there are three | ayers.
There is the sub, then there is the
wat er proofing, and then the wood shingles on top
of it.
Q And -- but how nuch of the new space is
covered by that wooden structure?
A.  You know, about 30 percent, a third of

it, of just the new space.

Q Sure. Sure. So six -- about roughly
six overall, but a third of the new space?
A.  Yes.

Q And then was there anything el se
installed in the sunmer garden?

A. There was also a 25-foot -- you know,
24 to 25-foot LED tree with a 13-foot canopy.

And, you know, while it is a secondary help with

sound mtigation, it just diffuses the -- the
people that are tal king underneath there. It's
not a dense, you know, covering, but -- so it

really was just a secondary neasure.
Q And how nmuch woul d you estinmate that
this tree and wind structure cost you?
A.  Oh, between the two, well over 30, 000.
MR M NORA: We would like to introduce
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Exhibit 8, Pages 5 to 15, just to show the
after.
BY MR M NORA
Q And what are we | ooking at here?
A. The LED tree.
MR M NORA: Ckay. Then scroll down
further.
BY MR M NORA
Q And this is, again --
A. You start to see -- | nmean, that is the
-- the tree wthout the canopy, but you start to
see the -- the wooden canopy on that |eft-hand
si de.
MR. M NORA: Ckay. Down further.
BY MR M NORA
Q Now, (inaudible). This is the tree and
not the entirety of the canopy, but nost of the

canopy. This is the --

A, Yes.
Q -- the wooden covering, correct?
A Andit's a -- you wll note that it's

angl ed there.
Q And this is just froma different
angl e, the sane --

A Yep.
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MR. M NORA: Ckay. And go down one
nor e.
THE WTNESS: That is underneath the
canopy.
BY MR M NORA:

Q And this is the portion of the sunmer
garden that is closest to the WIIlison, closest
to Rhode I sl and?

A. Cosest to the WIllison, and it hel ped
break that |ine of sight, which, you know, our
experts had said that is what you -- what we
needed to do.

Q Ckay. That's 10. So this is just
show ng sone of the -- what are we seeing here?

A. Yeah, | nean, that is -- you are seeing
the old summer garden, the first part. You can
see a little bit of the expanded tree, but that
i's, you know, fromthe door |ooking straight
back.

Q So the tree is roughly in the center of

t he sumer garden?

A. It's close. Yes.

Q GCkay. Again, simlar photo?
A.  Yes, sir.

Q Ckay.
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A.  Uh- huh
Q Geat. And then -- and now if you want
to scroll down -- this is again, another good

shot showi ng everything. And, M. QGQuggennos,
what is the red building directly next to you?
It's right there.

A. It's the Abdo, which is also our
| andl ord, their apartnent conpl ex.

Q Soit's a residence?

A. Oh, 1t's residence, but al so Shake

Shack is -- is on the first level. And |I'm
bl anki ng on the nane of the -- they have, |ike,
a sports bar on that -- that second floor. And

al so, Players Cub is, you know, in the
basenment, and then the el evator access to the
r oof t op.

Q GCkay. And what -- do you know of f hand
what floor that is on?

A. Rooftop at 6th?

Q 6th?

A.  I'mnot sure.

MR. M NORA: Yeah. Can we introduce

exhibit -- no, no. Sorry. Exhibit Nunber 9.
This is the CO for Players Cub and Skybox, just

showi ng that they have a sumrer garden on the
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seventh floor at the corner of 14th and Rhode
| sland with 110 peopl e.

G0 back (inaudible). And then if we
could just scroll up to the last, Page 16 is the
best version of -- no, go the next one. Sorry.

There you go.

THE WTNESS: There you go.
BY MR M NORA

Q And does this accurately reflect the
way the summer garden | ooks now?

A. Yes, that is the view from above.

Q Right. Thank you. And then did anyone
require you to nmake the sound mtigation
measur es?

A. No. | nean, we were going to do the --
t he canopy the nore heavy canvas, but we
sw tched over just because this would be nore
sound resilient.

Q So you planned these mtigation
measures, and then upon hearing the potenti al
conplaints fromthe WIIlison residence, you
I nproved them - -

A.  Yeah.

Q -- before installation?

A. Absol utely.
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Q Ckay. Thank you, sir. Now, is there
anot her licensed -- we tal ked about the Pl ayers
Cub at the corner of 14th Street, and the
sumer garden there on the seventh floor. |Is
there another licensed establishnment just nearby
Trade?

A. Yes, Black Wiskey. Their door is just
to the left of ours, but they occupy the second
floor at 1410.

Q GCkay. And have you ever heard their
operations while you were in Trade?

A. Oh, yes.

Q And did you hear themin the interior
or the exterior of Trade?

A.  You could hear themin both.

Q Both? Gkay. Let's talk about the
sumer garden. Wen could you really hear it?
s it regular, or is it -- just tell us a bit
nore about when you're going to hear Bl ack
Wi skey's operations into the summer garden at
Tr ade.

A Well, | nmean -- and that is -- you
know, you could hear it pretty nmuch all the
time, but when the patrons would slip out the

back to snoke on that, you know, back little
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deck to go down to the alley, and the door was
open, then the nmusic would really cone out. And
If you were standing down at summer garden, it
was j arring.

Q And you would say that sone -- you
know, with sone regularity?

A. Every weekend.

Q Every weekend? Ckay. So it's pretty
regular. And is this just patrons, or staff as
wel | that, you know, open up the door?

A. Patrons. The staff really did try to
-- to stop that, but, you know, when the bar is
full, it's very hard for themto, you know,
al ways be on top of that door. That is what you
m ght take of it.

Q GCkay. So it's -- Black Wi skey's
operations could negatively inpact Trade from
time to tinme, you would say?

A It -- it definitely inpacted the
enj oynent of the space. Yes.

Q So sort of just to sumthings up, you
know, you've been operating this |ocation for
over a decade, since 2015, and you've had the
summer garden hours until 1:45 and 2:45 since

2018, and going the extra 15 mnutes to 2023.
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So you have ten years of operating outdoor hours
at this location, eight within al nost the
maxi mum t hat they can be. Have you ever

recei ved an ABCA violation during this conplaint
No.

-- or during this period? Excuse ne.

No.

> O >

Q Have you ever received any during the
expanded summrer garden operations since June
20257

A.  No.

Q Have you ever received any conplaints
related to the summer garden operations at any
time fromother than the folks in the WIIlison
Condom ni um bui Il ding recently?

A.  No, we haven't, and we've requested at
our ANC neeti ngs.

Q And has the ANC nade you aware of any
conplaints that they've received from ot her
community nenbers, not the current protestants
during this tinme?

A.  No.

Q They -- no, they haven't nade you aware

of it, or no, they have told you they've not
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recei ved any conpl ai nts?

A. They've told ne that they haven't
recei ved any conpl ai nts.

Q Ckay.

A Sorry.

MR. M NORA: No further questions.
Thank you very nuch.
MR. ANDERSON: M. Sinkins?
MR. SINKINS: Yeah. Thank you. | have
a few questions for M. Guggennos.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR SI NKI NS:

Q First of all, it's a pleasure to neet
you. Could you -- what was the original
capacity of the Trade summer garden when it was
first opened?

The original one?

Yeah.

Was it 45?7 Forty-five.

Q GCkay. And what is the current

> O >

capacity?

AL I'msorry. W're getting the CVO
It's 133.

Q Thank you. So you nentioned that

you' re part of the ownership of Nunmber N ne.
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VWhat are their --

A.  Yeah.

Q -- outdoor hours of operation?

A. Qutdoor hours are until 11:00 p. m
during the week and m dnight on the -- the
weekends.

Q Right. 1Is that required by a
settl enent agreenent?

A Yes, it is.

Q Geat. Thank you. Are you famliar
w th Barrel House?

A Yes, | am

Q Yeah.

A.  Sonmewhat .

Q Yeah. Do you know that its hours of
operation for its sumer garden are up to 11:00
p.m on weekdays and m dni ght on weekends?

A 1'll take your word for that.

Q Geat. Are you famliar with Aslin?

A Yes.

Q Cay. And are you famliar with the
fact that their hours of operation for their
sumer garden are also up to 11:00 p.m on
weekdays and m dni ght on weekends?

A.  You -- take your word for that.
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Q Ckay, great. Wth respect -- are you
famliar with the Barcel ona Wne Bar?

A, Yes.

Q Yeah. And do you know that its hours
of operation for its summer garden are up to
m dni ght, seven days a week?

A. Yes. But first off, all of these are
si dewal k cafes, so there is a different
definition for a sunmer garden at a sidewal k
cafe, just so that we're clear.

Q GCay. Are you famliar with Jane Jane?

A.  Yes.

Q GCkay. And you know that its hours of
operation for its outside operations is up to
11: 00 p.m ?

A Yes.

MR. M NORA: (Objection. That's not the

MR. ANDERSON: What's the nature of
your objection?

MR. M NORA: They have a -- he's naking
-- M. Sinkins is nmaking it seemas if Jane
Jane's operations cease at 11:00 p.m when they
have, whether or not they avail thenselves to

it, a summer garden that goes until 2:00 and
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3:00 in the norning. | can check the records to
be sure.

Want to go back to Exhibit 117

MR. ANDERSON:  You can -- I'mgoing to
overrul e the objection.

You can answer the question if you have
-- otherwi se, you can put that on redirect.

MR SINKINS: Well, it's been answered.
BY MR S| NKI NS:

Q So each of the establishnments |'ve
asked you about are in the general vicinity of
Trade, correct?

A. That's correct.

Q GCkay. So -- and each of those
establi shnments has hours of operation that close
substantially earlier than Trade with respect to
t he summer garden, correct?

A. That's correct.

Q Yeah. So why are the rights of the
residential neighbors who Iive in close
proximty to Trade not entitled to the sane
| evel of respect that those who Iive near those
other facilities are entitled to?

MR M NCORA: (Qbjection. Formof the

question. This is -- it's pretty prejudicial if
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he i s saying that because of people having
different hours, making it a |lack of disrespect
to the nearby residences. That's not
(1 naudi bl e).

MR. ANDERSON:. Yeah, |I'mgoing to
sustain the objection.

| f you could rephrase the question,
sir?

MR SINKINS: Ckay.
BY MR SI NKI NS:

Q So wait, let nme rephrase. M.
Guggennos, you understand that the residents of
the WIllison, the protestants, have been
communi cating to you for nonths that they are
unable to sleep at night due to the late hours
of operation and the | evel of occupancy of
Trade, correct?

A. Yes, |I'"'maware that we have been -- you
know, about noi se issues.

Q Yeah. But you've also communicated
that it's a non-starter for you to reduce the
hours of operation or the occupancy |evel for
t he sumrer garden, correct?

MR MNORA: He -- he's -- objection.

He's discussing things in -- nade in --
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statenents nade in the mddle of -- an attenpt
to settlement and negoti ati on.

MR. ANDERSON: And now, I'magoing to --

| don't knowthat. | nean, the -- | guess the
(i naudi bl e).

MR SINKINS: Al right. Well, 1I'lIl be
happy to rephrase again. 1'1l be happy to

rephrase agai n.

MR. ANDERSON: (i naudi bl e).
BY MR SI NKI NS:

Q So you're aware that the residents of
the WIlison have been -- expressed to you their
inability to enjoy their hones and to go to
sl eep at night due to the occupancy | evels and
hours of operati on.

Have you expressed any willingness to
adjust -- are you wlling to adjust the terns of
your application to neet those concerns?

A.  You know, we're -- we're tal king about
geonetry. It's not so much about a tine; it's
about how you can best manage the space. And by
answering the -- you know, when you were
di scussing how it referenced the hours to the
ot her | ocations, you know, they're very

di fferent establishnents.
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You' ve got a, you know, unencl osed
sidewal k cafe. W're in an enclosed area that
we' ve taken steps to -- to mtigate the sound.
The location is really tucked behind the -- the
Abdo building with that one wall.
So it's not that we've not taken -- we

t ook the conplaint seriously, and upgraded the

canopy. W furthered -- and have now retai ned
M Il er, Beam and Paganelli to actually provide
even nore -- nore consultation so that we can

I nprove the structure, and they've requested or
said that we should install 2-inch fibergl ass
underneat h the awni ng, because then that would
act as an absorptive layer instead of just a
reflective layer. And, you know, there is sone
ot her panel s.

So we continue to try to inprove that
space, because | realize we're in a m xed-use
nei ghborhood. |It's a privilege to have a |iquor
license as -- as |I've had for all these years.
| really do understand that. [It's -- | think --
did that answer the question? | ranbled a
little bit.

MR SINKINS: Yeah. Al right. | have

no further questions. Thank you.
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THE W TNESS: Thank you.

MR. ANDERSON: Any questions by our
Board nenbers?

Go ahead, M. Meadows.

MR. MEADOAS: Hello. Good afternoon,
gentlemen. My question is, in Exhibit 8, we saw
t he Abdo buil ding, which was on the left. The
building with the rooster inage on it is --

THE W TNESS: Yes.

MR. MEADOAS: VWhat is the nanme of that
bui | di ng?

THE WTNESS: That is also an Abdo
property, and the Domnion Bank is in the first
part, and their offices are up on the second
fl oor.

MR. MEADOWAS: (kay. So there is no
residential in that building?

THE W TNESS: No.

MR. MEADOAS:  And the three photos that
we saw, that 8, 9, | guess, could we see the
Wl lianmson (sic) building, the WIIlianson (sic)
bui l ding there fromthose i nages?

THE W TNESS: Wen you were under the
canopy, you -- you couldn't, but, you know, from

the tree to the canopy, yes, you could see that.
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| think we -- in the pictures, we even provided

that on the very nost upper floors, you could

see those w ndows.

MR. MEADOWAS: All right. Thank you.

Thank you, M. Chairnman.

MR. ANDERSON: |I'm-- so the capacity
of the summer garden was 45 through what year?

THE W TNESS: 2000 and - -

MR. M NORA: You had approval earlier,
but you actually got to put it into --

THE WTNESS: 2018 is when we got the
-- the first extension.

MR M NCORA: In capacity.

THE WTNESS: First -- capacity. |I'm
sorry. The capacity, yeah, 2025. |'msorry. |
was t hi nking about --

MR. ANDERSON: No, I'msorry. No, I'm
--all right. Hold on. The -- what was the
original capacity of the sumer garden?

THE WTNESS: Forty-five.

MR. ANDERSON: And then it was expanded

THE W TNESS: The --
MR. ANDERSON: -- to 1337
THE W TNESS: Yes, sir.
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MR. ANDERSON:. And when was it expanded
to 133?

THE W TNESS: That was under the -- the
application, which would have been when we first
applied in 2023, and then the substantial change
I n 2025.

MR. ANDERSON: So that was a
substantial change in '25, and this is -- this
here, and it's part of your renewal, right? |Is
that -- that's what it is?

THE W TNESS: That's correct.

MR. ANDERSON: Al l right.

THE WTNESS: Part of the substantial
change too, was dealing with the occupanci es
inside, and really after the way that, you know,
DOB now del i neates the space on your CMO we
probably didn't need to do it.

You know, the capacity difference
I nsi de may have been two, but | nean, at -- at
28 or whatever that exact nunmber was, the Board
deened it was a substantial change, and we
pl acarded it.

MR. ANDERSON:. So what changed? What
changed from45 -- or maybe |I'mnot -- what

changed from45 to 123 (sic)? D d you -- was it

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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a-- was it a major expansion or are you saying
that DOB changed their analysis? Wich -- what
changed?

THE WTNESS: No, the -- it was a
substanti al expansion that did the |arge
I ncrease. The substantial change was
nodi fication in the nunbers, because during
construction, the counts were off.

MR. ANDERSON: '23. Did you -- was it

a-- was it a mmjor expansion --
MR MNORA: If | may just --
MR. ANDERSON. -- or are you saying

that you made the change (inaudible)? Wich --
what changed?

MR. M NORA: In 2023, the substanti al
change involved -- the expansion was interior
and exterior (inaudible).

THE WTNESS: No. It was a substanti al
expansion that did the |arge increase.

MR. M NORA: In 2025, we had sone
addi tional substantial change (i naudible).

THE W TNESS: The substantial change
was nodification in the nunbers, because during
construction -- yes, |I'msorry, there have been

-- this has been a progressive -- progressive
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steps and changes in the -- the |icense over
tine.

MR, ANDERSON: So what is the
di fference between the '23 and ' 25 substanti al
change requests? | nean, was it the
construction or was it just the way the
Departnent of Building | ooked at the building --
| ook at the structure itself?

THE W TNESS: The substantial change
application was based on, yes, the CMO nunbers
and the way DOB was counting them And | shoul d

have just waited for, you know, the directors to

-- to get back, but since -- you know, in
advance, | wanted to nake sure that we woul dn't
have any hiccups. | alerted Matt that that is
what the -- our CMO application was com ng at,

so that we could then file, you know, for a
substantial change if needed.

MR. ANDERSON: So what type -- or so on
t he summer garden, what type of endorsenent, if
any, do you have?

THE WTNESS: On the summer garden,
just the -- the hours. There is an
entertai nment endorsenent, but we don't --

MR MNORA: That is the interior only.
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THE WTNESS: -- we don't do any live
-- we -- no DJ, no live performances outside,
none.

MR. ANDERSON: So -- but I'msorry. So
do you have an entertai nnent endorsenent for
outsi de for the summer garden?

THE W TNESS: No. No.

MR. ANDERSON: So the residents are

conpl ai ni ng about noise. Are they -- so are
they -- what noise are they conpl ai ni ng about ?
Is it noise -- is it anplified nmusic or is it

just crowd noise? Wat noise, fromyour
perspective, is being -- are they nentioning?

THE WTNESS: Unanplified human voi ces.

MR, ANDERSON:  Unanplified human
voi ces. Ckay.

Any ot her questions by any Board
menber s?

M. -- M. Sinkins, any questions of
the wtness based on the questions that were
asked by the Board?

MR. SINKINS: No, | have no further
guesti ons.

MR. ANDERSON:. M. M nora, any

redirect?
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MR MNORA: No. No, sir.
MR. ANDERSON:.  Ckay.

your testinmony. Al right.
MR GUGEENMOS: Thank you, Chair.
MR. ANDERSON:. Before -- do you rest

MR. M NORA: Yes.
MR. ANDERSON: M. Mnora, are you --

want to nove into evidence?
MR MNORA: Yes. W would like to
nove i nto evidence the exhibits we presented.
MR. ANDERSON: And what exhibits were
they -- were those, sir?
MR M NCORA: Exhibit 11, Page 1;
Exhi bit Nunmber 4; Exhibit 9; and Exhi bit Nunber
8, Pages 1 -- oops. Sorry. (inaudible).
Exhibit 8 Pages 1 to 4, 5 to 15, and 16.

exhi bits?
MR M NORA: Yes. Yes, M. Chair.
MR. ANDERSON: Any objection? Any
obj ection, M. Sinkins?

MR. SINKINS: No objection.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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MR. ANDERSON:. Al w thout objection.
Al right, fine.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunents were received into evidence as
Applicant's Exhibit Nos. 4 and 8 and 9 and 11.

MR. ANDERSON: And so the protestant
rests; is that correct?

MR. M NORA: Yes, it's --

MR. ANDERSON: No, |I'msorry. The
applicants rest. Al right.

MR. M NORA: Yeah.

MR. ANDERSON: Al l right.

M. Sinkins, how many w tnesses do you

have?

MR, SINKINS: Including M. Florio,
four.

MR. ANDERSON:. Four. Al right, let's
take a -- let's take a break. W're going to

try to finish this today. So let's take a --
it's 3:04. We're off the record until 3:15,
okay? Al right.

MR SINKINS: Ckay.

MR. ANDERSON: Thank you.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter

went off the record at 3:05 p.m and resuned at
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3:15 p.m)

MR. ANDERSON: We're back on the
record.

kay. Who's your first wtness?

MR, SINKINS: M. Anderson, or Board
Menber Anderson, 1'd like to put on Miurray Hood
for testinony.

MR. ANDERSON:. Where is Miurray Hood?
Has that person been -- oh, Murray. Mirray. |
apol ogi ze.

M. Hood, can you raise your right
hand, please?

VWHEREUPOQON,

MURRAY HOOD
was called as a witness by counsel for the
Protestants and, after having been duly sworn,
was exam ned and testified as foll ows:

MR. ANDERSON: Al l right.

Your wtness, sir.

THE WTNESS: |'msorry?

MR. ANDERSON: No, | told the attorney
he's -- you're now his witness, so he can start
aski ng you questi ons.

MR SINKINS: Ckay. Thanks.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
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BY MR, SI NKI NS:

Q Can you pl ease state your nanme and
addr ess?

A. Mirray Hood, WIIlison Condom nium 1425
Rhode | sl and Avenue Northwest, Apartnent 11.

Q Gkay. How long have you lived in your
unit?

A. Al nost three years.

Q Ckay. How did you becone aware of the
Trade Ni ghtcl ub?

A. I"'mon the board of the WIIlison
Condom ni um Associ ation. And at one of our
neeti ngs, one of the nenbers pointed out that
there was an application for substantial change
on the -- the placard on the front door of
Tr ade.

| didn't -- was kind of unaware of
Trade. But | went around, |ooked at it, and
that's how it happened.

Q Okay. How close to Trade is your unit?

And | -- can --

MR. ANDERSON: |'msorry, M. Sinkins.
| need to -- is it a--1 -- this is a renewal.
This is not a substantial change, so --

THE W TNESS: | understand that.
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understand that. Sorry for interrupting. This
goes back to the original. W -- it's been
referred to in this neeting. There was an
original protest, so it's going all the way back
to that. That quote --

MR, ANDERSON:. Well, then you need to
clarify the tinme period then, sir, because this
hearing is specifically about the renewal.

THE WTNESS: | -- give ne one nore --

MR. ANDERSON:. But if you want to give
historical, then just put it -- put stuff --
just put it in context.

THE WTNESS: Yeah. Ckay.

MR. ANDERSON: That's all.

THE WTNESS: | get it. | get it.

G ve ne one nore sentence, okay?

For the substantial change, we did
protest. As it's been tal ked about in this
neeting, it was withdrawn. Qur protest was
about a concern about potential noise, but we
| earned that there was no basis for that in the
-- in their application, so we respectfully
wi t hdr ew.

BY MR SI NKI NS:
Q Gkay. Going back to the question | was

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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asking you, how close to Trade is your unit?

A, I'mgoing to say it's 50 to 75 feet.

Q GCkay. Do you recall when Trade opened
Its sunmer garden?

A. For the -- the revised expanded
version, it was sonmewhere around Menorial Day,
maybe a little sooner of |ast year, of 2025.

Q GCkay. Did your experience with Trade
change after Trade increased the hours of
operation of the summer garden?

A Wll, it was a little jarring to have
wi t hdrawn our original protest when we didn't
have standi ng about -- of any concerns about
noi se, to then within a week or so, have the
expanded sunmer garden open and have substanti al
noi se.

Q Ckay. Wen you're in your unit, do you
hear noi se from Trade?

A W hear -- ny wife and | w |l hear
occasi onal persistent and rhythm c bass that is
transmtted sort of at ground |evel, straight
over to our unit. The shed that they installed
to hang heating el enments has had the effect of
focusing sone of the crowd noise directly in our

di rection, rather than only up.
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Q Gkay. Can you hear noise from Trade
when the wi ndows to your unit are cl osed?

A. The persistent bass, we can hear.
Cccasionally, we can hear sort of --

MR M NCORA: Qbjection. | was going to

let the first one slide, but this calls for
specul ation. Wile he mght hear noise at his
apartnment, there's been nothing to attribute it

directly to Trade other than M. Sinkins'

questi on.

MR. ANDERSON: Well, | nean, | -- he
asked you a general question. |I'magoing to
overrul e the objection. | nean, you can -- you

-- on cross-exam nation, you can. So |'m going
to overrule the objection.
He can answer the question if he can.
THE WTNESS: So the persistent bass,
when we hear it, is with the wi ndows cl osed.
Very occasionally, when voices are sort of
rai sed beyond the conversation |evel, when they
start hollering or cheering, we will hear that
In our unit.
BY MR S| NKI NS:
Q Ckay. Have you had occasion to reach

out to M. Guggennps when you' ve heard noi se?
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A. Around the tine of the opening of the
expanded sumrer garden, we did have a problem
with the bass noise. And | arranged to neet
wi t h John Guggennos in our shared alley | ate one
ni ght | ast summer.

And we wal ked towards his unit, and he
confirmed that the problens with the bass were
I ndeed com ng from Trade, and that he would
endeavor to renedy that, and he did. Further to
that, he offered to have his engineer, his sound
engi neer, conme to our unit to nmake sure that the
problemw th the bass had been corrected. That
appoi ntnent was -- never took place.

Q Gkay. Thank you. How does the noise
affect your quality of life?

A. Wen the bass is audible in our unit,
it's -- basically, there's no sleeping until
Trade cl oses for the evening. And | should say,
we're tal king about, you know, Friday and
Saturday night. It is not a seven-day-a-week
t hi ng.

Q GCkay. So on a typical weekend night,
how | ate into the evening do you hear the noise?

A.  Wien we hear it, it's until they close

t heir outdoor operation.
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Q Ckay. So you've said already that the

noi se from Trade affects your ability to sl eep.
Do you believe it also is affecting your
physical or -- and -- and/or nental health?

A Well, it certainly is a source of,
let's just say, aggravation to have it going on
wi t hout a break.

Q Gkay. Did you have occasion to record
noi se from Trade?

A | did.

Q Gkay. Wien did you record that noise?

A. | believe it was Decenber 7th of I ast
year at about 12:30 a.m

MR, SINKINS: Okay. At this point, |
would i ke to play a recording from-- that M.
Hood nmade of just outside -- in the alley near
Trade. So I'mgoing to endeavor to share ny
screen if | can?

MR. ANDERSON: M. Oellana, | can't
allow M. Sinkins to share a screen. OCh, | see
first | have to give you permssion first to
share your screen, so it's not automatic.

MR. ORELLANA: That's the screen.

MR SINKINS: Ckay. |'ve got to --

bear with ne. | think | need to -- here we go.
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Okay. And I'mgoing to press play. Bear wth

me one second. |I'mjust trying to get it to

pl ay.

MR. ORELLANA: My -- you nay need to
unmaxi m ze it.

MR, SINKINS: You mi ght be right about
that, so bear with me. Not a -- need to get it
i n between. That's w ong.

MR, ORELLANA: Instead of m nim zing,
just unmaximze it.

MR. SINKINS: Yeah. Here we go.

MR. ORELLANA: You coul d probably
el ongate it fromthe corner.

BY MR, SI NKI NS:

Q So Murray, can you describe to ne what
we' re hearing and seeing right now?

A. Okay. I'mactually not hearing any
sound, just so you know.

MR SINKINS: |s everybody el se hearing
sound?

MR. ANDERSON: No, sir. |'m not
heari ng any sound.

MR, ORELLANA: You may need to share
agai n, and then when sharing on the right-hand

side, select where it says "automatically
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adjust." Select "best for video and notion."

MR, SINKINS: Okay. Let ne try that

again.

MR, ORELLANA: For sharing options.

MR SINKINS: Oh, "optimze for nedium
width." Got it. Share, and I'Il play again.

(Video played for the record.)
BY MR SI NKI NS:

Q So what are we seeing here Murray?

A.  I'mwal king from our garage, our
par ki ng space, over to Trade. |I'mstill not
heari ng any sound, so --

Q Ckay.

A. Wile w're working that out, you can
see the heating elenents hanging fromthis shed-
| i ke construction.

MR, ORELLANA: Do you have a different
pl ayer, like VLC Media Player?

MR, SINKINS: No.

MR, ORELLANA: You could try that.

MR, SINKINS: No, | don't. Ckay.
Wll, I've -- I'"'mgoing to introduce it as an
exhibit at the end of this anyway, so it'll be
part of the record with the actual recording.

BY MR SI NKI NS:
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Q Ckay. Have you al so taken deci bel
readi ngs fromyour unit?

A. Not fromthe unit, but as part of that

video, | did a coincident -- once | arrived to
the -- the wood fence, | did take a screenshot
of the decibels at -- at that spot at the sane
tinme.

MR SINKINS: Ckay. | -- 1'dlike to

share ny screen again to show t he deci bel
readi ng taken at that tine.
BY MR SI NKI NS:

Q GCkay. So, M. Hood, could you please
read the deci bel readings on this sound neter?

A. The -- the -- 105. 8.

Q And where was this taken?

A. This was taken basically right at the
fence, the outside of the fence at the Trade
summer garden.

Q Ckay, thank you.

MR. M NORA: There's been no foundation
laid that M. Hood has any sort of engineering
experi ence.

MR. ANDERSON: M. Mnora, why -- all
right. Wiy do you allow the man to answer the

guestion w thout objecting, sir? | nean, you
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shoul d have objected fromthe junpstart.

MR M NORA: W were accidentally nuted
on that, but I was trying to. This particular
-- the video, | don't know what that was, but
this is inadmssible. It doesn't -- it -- it's
-- by the Board's own standards, it doesn't neet
any of the requirenents for a sound deci bel
measurenent to be introduced and used in a
prot est heari ng.

MR. ANDERSON: And unl ess you're
presenting -- M. -- M. Sinkins, unless you're
presenting M. Hood as an expert, | am-- |'m
going to sustain the objection. There is no
foundation that he's even qualified. | don't
even -- | don't know what is -- what's presented

MR SINKINS: No but --

MR. ANDERSON:. Hold on, please. And
there's no foundation raised that he's an expert
to tal k about what decinmal readings are. So |'m
going to sustain the objection.

MR. SINKINS: There's no need to be an
expert to take a reading and then read what the
nunber says. | nean, if there was a --

MR. ANDERSON: | don't know what the --
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M. Sinkins, |I don't know what the nunbers are.
| don't know how -- | don't know what they're
portraying. | don't know what a noise neter is.

| don't know if --

MR SINKINS: | --
MR, ANDERSON: | don't know not hi ng
about a noise neter. So as | said before, |I'm

going to sustain the objection, because there's
no foundation. There is no -- although we don't
necessarily abide strictly by the rules of
evidence in these hearings, but | think this is
stretching too far

MR SINKINS: Wwell --

MR. ANDERSON: This witness is not an
expert, and so therefore, this is lay testinony
on noi se readi ng, and that's not probative.
That's not going to help the Board. So I'm
sustai ni ng the objection.

MR SINKINS: Ckay. Moving on.

MR. ANDERSON: Go ahead.

BY MR SI NKI NS:
Q Do you believe |leaving -- living near
Trade affects the econom c value of your unit?
A. |'mgoing to say yes.

MR M NORA: (bjection. CQutside the
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scope of the protest.

MR, ANDERSON: | nean --

MR. M NORA: (inaudible) --

MR. ANDERSON: | nean, |'msorry.
Wll, I'l'l allow himto answer the question.

Let's nove on.

THE WTNESS: |'mgoing to say yes.
woul d say sort of in the abstract, potential
buyers who -- who are represented by real estate
agents, the real estate agents, it's in their
best interest, if not in their oath of office,
if you will, to disclose not just the benefits,
but potential problens to a particul ar apartnent
or house that's for sale. It's a reputational
risk. So | think realtors who know this area --

MR. M NORA: (bjection --

THE W TNESS: -- know about Trade --

MR M NORA: Sorry. M. Anderson, no
realtor tradi ng experience has been presented as
a foundati on.

MR. ANDERSON: Let's -- all right, I'm
overruling this objection. He can answer the
guestion. | nean, that's one of the protest
I ssues. | nean, he can --

MR. M NORA: (inaudible) protest
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I ssues.

MR. ANDERSON: For whatever it's worth,
he can testify, sir, okay? You -- you'll have
an opportunity to cross-exam ne hi mabout what
he just testified about.

THE WTNESS: And | -- | would just
al so offer that | believe John GQuggennbs was or
Is arealtor, so --

MR. ANDERSON: This is not about M. --

THE WTNESS: -- he would certainly be
aware of this kind of respectful ness towards
buyers that he m ght represent or other realtors
m ght represent.

BY MR, SI NKI NS:

Q Ckay. And, Murray, what would you ask
the Board to do in this instance on this
application?

A | would Iike themto reject it, and if
they're unable or unwlling to reject it, to
establish closing hours for the sunmer garden at
Trade to be 10:00 p.m during the week and 11: 00
p.m on the weekends.

MR. SINKINS: kay. Thank you. | have
no further questions.

MR. ANDERSON: M nor a?
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CRCOSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR M NORA:

Q Thank you. M. Hood, you said that M.
-- you said that your apartnment or your
condom niumis, you know, 50 to 75 feet away
from Trade, correct?

A.  Uh- huh

Q So would that put the WIIlison
Condom nium at the, you know, next door to
Trade?

A.  Not next door, no.

Q VWhat woul d you say the cl osest building
on 14th Street is to Trade? O is it on Rhode
| sl and Avenue to Trade?

A. Residential would be ny place.

Q Uh-huh. And then -- so then if you're
only 50 feet away, the WIlIlison nust be right
next to ny place, correct?

A. There's one building separating the
t wo.

Q Yeah. And what was the nanme of that
bui | di ng?

A.  New Port West.

Q Port West Apartnents. Okay. So

there's at least two residential units and the
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T-Mobil e store that the investigator talked
about between your apartnent and Trade, correct?

A.  Uh-huh. Yeah.

Q So still think it's 75 feet away?

A. | guess you have the neasurenents. |
don't know.

Q I'mjust basing off what you're saying

MR ANDERSON. M. -- M. -- M. -- M.

Hood, you don't ask himquestions, sir. He asks

you a question, you respond. |If you can't

respond, you say, | don't know, but you don't

ask him questions, sir. Your job is to answer

the questions to the best of your ability, sir.
Go ahead.

BY MR M NORA:

Q M. Hood, you said that the -- you
protested in 2025 initially essentially because
t he hours had changed, correct?

A. The original protest that we w thdrew,
Is that -- I'"'mnot allowed to ask questions, but
Is that the one you're referring to?

Q Yes, that is the one I'mreferring to,
yes.

A. Okay. So we enbarked on that, quite
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honestly, w thout fully understandi ng what
subst anti al change neant, and even though we did
go in nmediation with you, and we did have
specific questions which you answered for us and
-- and put us at ease about, the -- the
unresol ved question was about potential noise,
gi ven just not the expansion of the footprint,
but the fact that it was sliding south, the
footprint, the -- the -- of the patio, so that
it would be partially exposed to our buil ding.
And | think as you have stated in at |east one
medi ation that |'ve attended wth you, you have
said that sound can do unexpected things, and
this m ght have been one of the unexpected
things as it regards to our building.

Q Not exactly correct, but |'mnot going
to object on that one right now So you said
earlier that you can tell that the voice -- that
the bass you're hearing is comng from Trade,
and that the shed -- let's talk about that.
That you said that the bass you know i s hearing
Is comng from Trade.

A.  Unh-huh

Q How did you determ ne that?

A. | wal ked over. Even though there was
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no sound on that video, and even though |I'm not
an expert, the i Phone was not able to pick up
the bass, but certainly I was able to hear it.
This is -- if | could add, if it's all right,
that this is one of the reasons why we wanted to
have a neeting of the m nds of the attorneys, of
the people that are affected, the owners of
Trade, and the residents of WIlison, along with
an ABCA investigator --

Q M. Hood --

A. -- so that we can all hear at the sane
time what the noise was and how it was affecting
us.

Q So no, so --

MR. ANDERSON: M. Mnora --
BY MR M NORA:

Q | guess the questionis -- it's twofold
now. So you admt in the video that we coul dn't
hear anything on the bass wasn't picked up there
if you could hear it at all? So --

A. That's correct.

Q So again, how are you determ ning that
the bass that you're hearing is comng from
Trade, and not fromany of the two or three

ot her licensed establishnments nearby?
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A. Well, | cannot do that w thout having
ot her witnesses, and --

Q So the answer is --

A. -- when -- one second, one second.

Wien | did this last spring with John Guggennos,
he confirnmed at that nonent that it was com ng
from Trade, okay? So that's --

Q M. --

A. That's a data point right there.

Q That was about interior bass noise from
t he speakers for the DJs on the inside, correct?

A.  So he said.

Q That's pretty disingenuous. So as he
explained to you that there were actual
construction holes left in the physical exterior
of the building due to HVAC repairs, correct?

A.  Yes. Yes.

Q And those repairs were nade, correct?

A, Yes.

Q And it has since dimnished the bass
that you're hearing fromthe inside, correct?

A.  That is ny understanding.

Q Gkay. So again, what you're hearing
was bass fromthe inside, nothing fromthe

out si de speakers, correct?
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A. At that tine, correct.

Q Gkay. And are you aware of the hours
of operation for Players C ub summer garden?

A.  No.

Q Wuuld you be surprised to know t hat
they go until nuch later than you' re asking ny
client to go to, 12:30 and 1:00?

A. | accept your statenent as fact.

Q Sure. So then if we're tal king about
the noise that you' re hearing, once again, you
said that the shed, instead of blocking it,
sonehow focuses it in a direction at your unit,
correct?

A. |t can happen, as |'ve said previously,
that we've determ ned that sound can do
unexpect ed t hings.

Q Yeah, that was said once. There has
been no determ nati on nmade what soever. \Wat
we're saying is --

MR, SINKINS: bjection. Argunentative
repeatedly in this cross-exam nation.

MR. ANDERSON: All right, gentlenen.
M. Mnora, ask a question. M. Hood, please
respond, and let's nove on. | have three nore

W tnesses to go this afternoon.
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Ckay, go ahead.
BY MR M NORA:
Q So once again, you're not a sound
expert, correct?
A.  No.
Q Not an engi neer of any kind?
A.  No.
MR. M NORA: Ckay. No further
questions. Thank you.
MR. ANDERSON: M. Hood, |'m confused.
You testified that the noise that you heard was
usual ly Friday and Saturday, but that's not --
it is not seven days a week, so you don't hear
any noi se during the week; is that correct?
THE W TNESS: | nside, no.
MR. ANDERSON. |'m-- explain what you
mean i nside now. You're saying --
THE WTNESS: Inside our apartnent with
t he wi ndows cl osed.
MR. ANDERSON:. So you don't hear any
noi se on weeknights; it is just the weekend?
THE W TNESS: Yeah, Sunday through
Thur sday, basically.
MR, ANDERSON. Well, it -- but -- and

the reason why | ask you that question, because
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you were saying that -- so if you're not hearing
noi se on Sunday through Thursday, why are you
asking for the Board to reduce the hours during

-- on Sunday through Thursday to 10:00 p.m if

you -- if you're not hearing any noise?
THE WTNESS: | think it's -- first of
all, it's -- the space, our alley, is sonewhat

uni que, unli ke other establishnents that have
been referred to earlier, in that we have
nunerous flat surfaces off which all kinds of

noi ses can reflect. And so unlike, say, 14th

Street where it's -- it's a wde street, this is
very concentrated -- in a very concentrated
ar ea.

| confess |'mnot a sound engi neer, but
we know what we're experiencing.

MR. ANDERSON:  And now, is this
anplified -- this is -- what type of -- are you
hearing anplified sound or are you hearing
peopl e, conversational sound? Wich -- what
type of noise are you hearing?

THE WTNESS: | am hearing bass sound.

And the only thing I would add to that is that
when | hear it on a Friday and | have texted

John Guggennos, the next night, | do not hear
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the bass sound. |It's -- could be a coincidence
or not, but there have been four occasions where
|'ve texted him and the next night it's

resol ved.

MR. ANDERSON: Have you ever -- have
you ever filed a conplaint with ABCA regarding
noi se?

THE WTNESS: W have been encouraged
by John Guggennos and Matt M nora, at | east
before this nost recent protest, to try to work
with themdirectly, and so this is an exanpl e of
t hat .

MR. ANDERSON:. But if you've worked
wWwth themdirectly and if you're still
di ssatisfied, why then not file a conplaint with
t he Agency? Because they're -- the record
states that they have no infractions, so no one
called, so they're --

THE WTNESS: Well, one of the things
iIs that it has to be pretty coincident. You
file a conplaint, the response is probably not
in the next 30 m nutes.

MR. ANDERSON: But at |east -- but at
| east you would have -- there would be a record

to say that we have filed conplaints with ABCA
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SO now -- so there is a difference. So maybe
you woul d be surprised that there is a response
I mredi ately, but at |east you would have a
record that you have filed a conplaint with the
Agency, and so the Agency can say that we have
received five conplaints, we have investi gated,
t hey have been substantiated or not. So that's
why | was asking you if you have ever filed --

THE W TNESS: Yeah

MR. ANDERSON:. -- a conplaint with the
Agency?

THE WTNESS: Yeah. Again, | go back
to the -- you know, | think that John Guggennos,
in all sincerity, wants to be a good nei ghbor,
and we do as well.

And once we established sort of a basic
rel ati onshi p, we were encouraged by John and by
his attorney to try to work this out directly,
and that is what we have done.

MR. ANDERSON: Ckay.

Al right, thanks. Any other -- any
guestions by any of the Board nenbers?

Go ahead, Ms. Quinn.

M5. QUNN | thank you for testifying

today. | would like to better understand your
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testinony regarding real estate value or
potential inpact on real estate val ue.

What | thought | heard you say was
sonet hing along the |lines of you could inmagine
that a realtor mght advise a potential buyer of
noi se issues. D d you -- did | hear that
correctly?

THE WTNESS: Advise is a strong word.

| think it's nore disclose.

M5. QU NN. Disclose. kay, that is
fine.

THE WTNESS: So | think that realtors,
especially those that know the area, wherever
the area is, feel that they have an obligation
to disclose anything that is unique, good and
bad, to potential buyers --

M5. QUI NN Ckay.

THE WTNESS: -- because if for no
ot her reason their own reputational risk.

M5. QU NN. Sure. And | can buy that.

| think where | amhaving a little nore
difficulty is, if we can imgine that disclosure
happeni ng, how would a realtor know about this
speci fic noi se being connected to this specific

busi ness?
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Because what | -- the other part of the
testinony, you seened to indicate that the noise
I s happeni ng specifically on the weekends within
certain hours when you woul dn't be show ng
properties.

And | al so understand fromthe
I nvestigator's testinony that the -- this
property seens to be in close proximty to the
14th Street kind of mmjor commercial area, so
| "' mjust having troubl e understandi ng how a
realtor would be able to distinguish and
hi ghlight for a potential buyer that noise is
specifically comng fromthis business such that
you coul d make the connection that this business

is, in fact, inpacting your commercial value?

THE WTNESS: Well, let ne just say,
first of all, so there is no confusion, | am not
a realtor. | don't have any expertise in this.

M5. QU NN Ckay.

THE WTNESS: But we -- when we bought
our apartnment here, we also | ooked at a unit on
14th Street, which was very nice, and it was
over a restaurant that had yet to be open.

And our realtor said, you know, | know

you like this apartnment. Just so you know,
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there's a restaurant going in underneath, and
there's going to be a streetery, and |I' mj ust
letting you know.

M5. QUI NN  Ckay.

THE WTNESS: So the other thing,
agai n, going back to my personal experience, is
that up until the Trade expansion of its patio,
we weren't really hearing very much of anythi ng,
but the expansi on exposed the -- it noved itself
and exposed a corner of the -- the new garden to
our bui |l di ng.

And so when | bought, the realtor
didn't know anyt hi ng about it because there was
no problem Nowit's sort of -- there is new
information, and what to do with it.

M5. QU NN. Ckay. Well, thank you for
that information. | would also just like to
coment that | have -- | really val ue your
testinony about your experiences working with
the owner directly.

One, | appreciate your willingness to
do that, and |I appreciate knowing that it seens
that there has been sone effort fromthe
busi ness side to try to work with you. | nean,

it sounds like there is still sone issues about
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whet her, you know, you've quite reached the
perfect end, but | do hope that you're
encouraged to continue to work with the owner,
and that the owner is also encouraged to
continue to work with you and ot her residents.
Thank you again for your testinony.

THE WTNESS: And if | could just add
one final thing. The hours that we request are
because there has been no neani ngful sound
mtigation, which | think M. Sinkins referred
to at the outset. |If the sound could be
mtigated, the hours demand request, that --
that falls away.

M5. QUI NN Ckay.

That's all fromnme, M. Chair.

MR. ANDERSON:. Any ot her questions by
any Board nenbers?

M. Mnora, any questions of the
W t ness based on a question asked by the Board?

You're on mute, sSir.
BY MR M NORA:

Q M. Hood, when did you purchase your
uni t?

A. It was not quite three years ago.

Q Do you -- a year? Could you give ne
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the year, please?
A. Three years, that would have been 2023.
' 23.
Q Because according to what | have, the

-- at least the closing was in |ate May of 2023,

just for --
A, Kkay.
Q -- the tineline. That was after we had

al ready applied for the expansion --
A.  Ckay.
Q ~-- of Trade, for the record.
MR. M NORA: That's all fromnme. Thank
you.
MR. ANDERSON: Any ot her questi ons,
sir? That's it?
Al right, M. Sinkins. Any redirect?
MR SINKINS: Just one question.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR SI NKI NS:
Q Mirray, you were just asked when you
cl osed on your unit and when you noved in, and
M. Mnora stated that was after they had -- or
after they filed for the application.
Was t he expanded sunmmer garden

operational at the time you noved into your

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N DD MDD P P P PP PP PP PP PP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b wWw N B+, O

108
unit?
A.  No.

MR, SINKINS: Thank you. That's all.

MR. ANDERSON. M. Hood, thank you for
your testinony today. You're free to go.

Al right. M. Sinkins, do you have
anot her w tness?

MR. SINKINS: Yeah. 1'd like to call
Ran Borgersen to the stand.

MR. ANDERSON: Where is Ran Borgersen?

Ckay. Can you raise your right hand,
sir?

VWHEREUPOQON,

RANDALL BORGERSEN
was called as a witness by counsel for the
Protestants and, after having been duly sworn,
was exam ned and testified as foll ows:

MR, ANDERSON:. Thank you.

Your wtness, sir.

MR. SINKINS: Yeah.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR SI NKI NS:
Q Can you pl ease state your nane and

addr ess?

A. Sure. M nane is Randall Borgersen, is
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my full nane, and ny address is 1425 Rhode
| sl and Avenue Northwest, Apartnment PH2,
Pent house 2.

Q How long have you lived in your hone?

A It will be 21 years in August.

Q Geat. How did you becone aware of the
Trade Ni ghtcl ub?

A. | don't know how many years ago it was
that they first opened, but when they first
opened, | started going to it.

Q Ckay. How often do you frequent Trade
over the years?

A. | went nore before COVID, which |I think
all of our, you know, establishnent owners hate
to hear, and | -- | probably go about three to
four times a year now. |'ve been three or four
times actually since the sumer garden opened.

Q CGot you. Have you enjoyed being a
patron of Trade?

A.  Yeah. You know, it's kind of a neeting
point for ny friends, and, you know, |'ve --
|"ve patronized nmultiple establishnments of M.
GQuggennos, Town, N ne, Trade, and, you know,

t hey becone, like, the fifth place where

ever ybody goes.
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And you go to a bar not just to neet
t he peopl e you expect to neet, but the people
you don't expect to neet. |It's where everybody
goes. And so even now that | have the issue
with the sound, | still go occasionally because
that is where ny friends neet.
Q Gay. R ght. Howclose to Trade is

your unit?

A Wll, I"'mnot a surveyor. | was
guessing, |ike, naybe 100 feet as the crow
flies. | was |ooking at the circle that M.

Harris showed with the 200-foot radius, and
| ooking at his circle, | would guess it's
probably -- maybe 100, 125 feet, like, linearly.
Q CGot you. kay. And can you describe
your experience with Trade after it first
opened?
A. So as a patron, great, and actually as
a nei ghbor, great. | live on the eighth floor.
|"mon the top floor of the WIllison. So | can
see the back of Trade directly. But what was, |
bel i eve M. Meadows called, the rooster
bui l ding, the -- the CVS and Abdo is in there,
t hat bl ocks much of the original footprint |ine

of sight fromny unit, so it was hi dden behind
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there. So I didn't even know -- |ike, | never
heard them | didn't even know -- you know, |

ki nd of knew what hours they were as a patron,
but, Iike, we never heard them

Back then -- so back when it was, |ike,

45 people and half the size it was now, when |
go -- when | went, the back patio was kind of

| i ke the space you went, you know, when you go
to a barn. It's, like, really noisy inside and
you want to kind of get away fromthe noi se and
have |ike a nice conversation with your friends.
The back patio was kind of |ike that kind of
space. It was like the escape fromthe bar.

You know, since the patio's been expanded, they
now serve drinks out there, which they didn't do
before, and it gets pretty crowded. So it's
almost -- it's like an exterior extension of the
interior of the bar now It's |ike the place
you -- |like, if you saw that, there were, |iKke,
bl eachers. Everybody stands. |It's |like a place
you go to be seen, see and be seen. M friends
and | have, like, alittle corner, actually, in
t he back, new part of the back patio. So | use
the part that drives ne crazy. But they have a

corner where there's, like, this little bar you
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can put your drinks on, and ny friends and |
al ways try and get that space so we can stand

Wi th our drinks and just kind of watch

ever ybody.

Q Ckay.

A. But the noise -- so as a neighbor, it
was quiet. Now, with the expansion, it's -- you

know, the use of it has fundanental |y changed.
Li ke, you know, it -- it depends on -- for the
weekdays, it depends on the weather. |If the
weat her is nice, people are out in the sunmer
garden, and it gets loud. And | hear it on the
weekends. Like, | was actually amazed since

they put the shed in with the heaters that,

i ke, dead of winter, | believe, MAL weekend, it
was, |ike, insane. Like, until 2:00 a.m, you
coul d just hear everybody because it's -- it's a

destination, especially during Pride and MAL and

things |like that.

It -- but it -- it's to the point
where, though, like, | -- | dread the evenings
because even with ny wi ndows cl osed, | can hear

the cromd. And then sonetinmes you hear people
scream ng and occasionally the happy birthday,

you know. And | don't hold this against Trade.
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Cccasionally, | think a DJ slips, and | -- |'ve
heard nusic a couple of tinmes, but |I'mnot going
to -- I"'mnot -- I'"'mnentioning it, but |I'm not
i ncluding that in ny conpl aint because | think
it's sonmebody just turning a knob that they're
not supposed to turn, |ike, an occasional night
or sonmething. But it's, like, I'll be in ny
living roomplaying nusic, and | hear the voices
through the nmusic in ny living roomwth the
wi ndows cl osed.

And | want to say, |'ve lived in Logan
Crcle for 30 years. | think I actually lived
behi nd M. Guggennos on P Street for a nunber of
years. You know, when the nei ghborhood has gone
through a ot and ny -- you know, it's -- Logan
Crcle, it's noisy. W get delivery trucks. W
get all kinds of noises. There'll be people

pl ayi ng the saxophone in front of Wol e Foods.

But the difference is -- is those noises are,

like, tenmporary. So I'll play the -- | hear the

saxophone nmaybe for, like, 45 m nutes, an hour.
This wll start, like, early in the

evening, and it just goes on and on and on and
on. It's -- it's different. It just kind of,

like -- it -- it -- like, you just dread it.
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You're sitting in your living room playing nusic

and, like, I -- | have to, like, go into ny
office and close the door to, like, escape it if
it, like -- because there are just sone nights
of, like, it's hard to describe. It's like, you

know, it just keeps goi ng.

You know, Trade has -- and | have to
say, | was really surprised because |'ve been
going to M. Quggennos' venues for many years,
and Trade has been an amazi ng nei ghbor, |ike the
things that M. Guggennos sai d about snokers and
consi deration and everything like that. So |
was really surprised that this happened with the
noise. | had better things to do. | was going
to be in Mexico today. | canme hone early to be

here and testify. W're paying thousands of

dollars to M. Sinkins to do this. | have never
before in ny -- sincel -- | first noved to
Logan, actually, in '"94, |'ve never, ever nyself

pl aced a noi se conpl ai nt ever before, directly
nysel f. Maybe ny buil di ng house or whatever,
but |'ve never been, |ike, an active conpl ai nant
until now. And because |'ve lived in Logan
Crcle for 30 years, like, |I knowthe reality

of, like, living in downtown. And this just

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N DD MDD P P P PP PP PP PP PP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b wWw N B+, O

115
kind of, |ike, pushes ne over.

And to the point -- so there've been a
| ot of questions about how do we know it's
Trade? Well, I've invited, like, the ANC, M.
Mnora. |'ve said, anybody can cone over to ny
pl ace. W can open the w ndow, and we all have
two ears. Wen you're on the street and a car
honks its horn, you instinctively know what
direction to | ook at, what, you know, car. You
know, if people couldn't tell what direction a
sound cane from what good would a horn be on a
car? You can, like -- and on ny roof deck,
like, |I've had people on ny roof deck and
they're like, we can't have a conversation
because it's so loud up here. And you can stand
on ny roof deck, and you | ook right down
directly into the Trade sumrer garden, and your
two ears tell you it conmes fromthere.

There is the place in the corner. |
forget the nane of it, the -- that's on the
ei ghth floor of the Abdo building. Wen that
was first constructed, | was really worried
because I'mon the eighth floor and, l|ike, their
building is on the eighth floor. But you know,

noi se i s what -- you know, sound is the way it
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is. Their -- their sumrer garden faces 14th
Street and, like, their whole building is
between nme and their summer garden. And | --
i ke, before they existed, before Trade opened
their summer garden, and if that establishnent
had made noi se when they opened years ago, |
woul d' ve been talking to you all about that

est abl i shnent . But | don't hear that.

So I"'mjust totally here. | |love
Trade. They've done, you know -- sorry, |I'm
enotional. Wat they've done for the conmunity,

town, you know, people comng out, it's been
amazing. So | want Trade to thrive. They can
stay open as late as they want. | just don't
want to hear them | used to go to Vel vet
Nati on back in the day and stay out till 6:00
a.m |I'mnot quite that age anynore, but young
peopl e should have that ability to do that these
days, and | don't want to stop that. Sorry.

Q Thank you. Appreciate that testinony.
You covered a |lot of ground there. How does
the noise from Trade affect your regular quality
of life?

A. Well, no, even -- even with the w ndows

closed, it cones in the unit. M husband -- |
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have i Pod sound for earplugs. They're these
little, like, ear-flush, sleeping earplugs so
that | can sleep at night. They have noi se-
canceling built in. And ny husband wears -- he
has this thing that's |ike a headband that al so,
i ke, covers your eyes because he likes the
dark. But, like, sitting in the living room
it's -- it doesn't interfere wth our

conversation, but it's |like you have a crowd in

t he next roomor sonmething. It just kind of --
it -- like, it -- 1 -- 1 think our brains -- you
know, |I'mnot a neurologist. | know we all have

(inaudible), but it's like our brains are
trained to hear voices or sonething like that,
and they just work their way through the nusic.
Q Uh-huh. Well, thank you. On a typical
weekday night, how late into the evening can you
hear the noise from Trade?
A Well, you know, to be fair, there isn't
a typical -- it -- it depends on the weather.
If the weather is really nice and the sumer
garden is happening, or, like, if it's during
Pride or MAL or like this, |ike everybody is out
fromsone big event, | pretty nuch hear it till

| go to bed, which can be 11:00 to m dni ght.
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But if the weather is crumry, | think there are
| ess people out there. Although now with the
shed, with the heaters, they're -- |'ve been
surprised, there are nore people out, willing to
stand out. | guess it's warm | haven't been
there -- | haven't visited since they installed
the heaters in the winter, so -- but | guess
that |l ets people stay out nore.

Q On a typical weekend night, how |l ate
Into the evening can you hear the noise?

A.  Oh, you know, when |I stay up late, like
1: 00 or sonething |like that, because when | go
to bed, the earphones go in, so --

Q Ckay.

A. Like, the nose -- noise could continue,
but |'m not engagi ng.

Q Do you believe the noise from Trade has
affected your ability to sleep and your physical
or nmental health?

A. Well, you know, just the fact that when
there's a weekend with nice weather and you're
t hi nki ng, ugh, tonight is going to be another
ni ght where you sit in the living roomand you
j ust hear voices, you know? You know? And I --

| got the noise-canceling earbuds.
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Q Ckay. Wat would you ask the Board to
do in this case?

A. So | would ask the Board to, if the
termis decline as it is, but like I said, |
don't have an issue with how |ate Trade i s open
or how many people have. | have an issue with
the noise. So what | would ask potentially is,
you know what? For | don't know how many years
Trade was open, | didn't hear them | had no
I ssue. So you know, if Trade is going to do
sound mtigation that works, that's great
because it's wwin-wn for everybody. They get to
have | ots of people, and we don't get to hear
them But until they do the mtigation and we
know that it's actually working, what | woul d
ask is that if the Board approved a nodification
where after 10:00 p.m, Trade operates the
summer garden the way they operated it before
t hey expanded. They were a vi abl e busi ness
before they expanded the summer garden. Can
they just for now go back to where they were
before they expanded the summer garden and,
like, nearly tripled the occupancy and started
serving drinks and nmaking it a -- it's a scene

now. It used to be an escape. Nowit's a
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scene. And just go back to the way it was, and
that wouldn't --

You know, | understand M. Guggennos'
concern about snokers being out front. |
remenber seeing all the cigarette butts back in
the day in front of Trade and the ot her bars.
You know, |et them do the summer garden the way
it was, and let the -- the snokers can go to the
back by the back doubl e-doors where they go now,
which is the snoking area. And just, I|ike,
maybe cordon off the other summer garden. Stop
serving al cohol outside after those hours.
Revert to that. Let's see what they -- he's
hired these engineers and stuff |ike that.

Let's see what they can do, because | was kind
of -- I was really hoping that the shed and the
tree would solve the problem and they don't.
And I'm not a sound engi neer, but |'m guessing
wth ny two ears, like, listening directionally,
that it's bouncing off the back of their
bui | ding, which is brick. And actually, the
shed -- like | said, |I'mnot an acoustic
engineer. |'mactually wondering if the shed
actually helps it bounce off the back of the

building at ne. And our -- ny alley that we
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live in, because Rhode Island Avenue is angl ed,
Is shaped like -- is shaped kind of |ike a horn,
and maybe that's why we get it. Like, | really
wish | didn't get it. | don't understand
acoustics, but | get it.

MR, SINKINS: Okay. | have no further
guesti ons.

MR. ANDERSON: Any questions from ot her
Board nenbers?

Go ahead, Ms. Quinn.

M5. QUINN. Yes. Again, thank you for
testifying. Can you help ne understand how --
is it that the main issue is the noise from
voi ces, or the main issue is the noise from
musi c?

THE WTNESS: It's a conbination. So
they play nmusic low on the -- out in the back
pati o, but that starts the crowd kind of
spiraling, speaking |oudly, because no matter
how | ow the nusic is, people start speaking over
it alittle bit. Then people start speaking
over other people, and then they start speaking
over other people. So it kind of, like, starts
the process that altogether it's like, you know,

you can't pick the nmusic out, but there's nusic
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in there sonmewhere.

M5. QU NN. Ckay. Thank you.

M. Chair, that's it for ne.

MR. ANDERSON: Ch, thank you.

Al right. You talked about that you
said that your -- this is a regular that you
attended. Did they serve al cohol in the sunmer
garden previously?

THE WTNESS: Not that |I'm aware of.

MR. ANDERSON: So it was after the --
|"msorry. So you're saying it was after the
expansi on that they started serving?

THE WTNESS: Yeah. So | -- | would
say no. The -- because the wi ndow -- so they
noved into the space next door, as | think M.
Guggennos explained. The -- in the space next
door, which al so doubl ed the size of the sunmer
garden, they cut a hole into the back of the
buil ding, so the bartenders inside -- | think it
-- the way it works is the bartenders inside the
bui | ding or the bar inside the building extends
to be outside of the building, so they can serve
al cohol out in the summer garden, and you can
just get drinks out there.

MR. ANDERSON:. All right. GCkay. Thank
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you. Any other questions by any other Board
menber s?

Al right. M. Mnora.

MR MNORA: Yes. Before | begin the
guestioning, wth the Board's indul gence, can |
just let M. Guggennops just quickly respond,
just personally, to what M. Borgersen said, the
ki nd words?

MR. ANDERSON: No, he can't respond.
| f you want to call himas a rebuttal wtness
t hen -- but no.

MR. M NORA: Fair enough.

MR. ANDERSON:. Any questions?

MR. M NORA: Thank you. Oh, yes.
Yeah, yes.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR M NORA

Q Just want to say, thank you for
testifying today, M. Borgersen. W appreciate
it and I'msure M. Guggennos appreci ates your
patience over the years. | just wanted to
clarify a couple of things. You said it -- it's
-- the DJ noise is not sonething you really are
heari ng. Wen you' re tal ki ng about any ki nd of

sound on the outside, it's predom nantly hunman
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voi ces that you think may have sort of been
rai sed to conpensate for background, basically,
on the outside, correct?

A O it's mxedin. Soit's |like maybe
i ke 80:20 or sonething like that.

Q Sure. But you're not hearing, you
know, |ike bass or specific songs, anything of
t hat nature?

A. No. |I'mnot a sound engi neer, but I
t hi nk the bass normally conducts through the

ground, whereas |I'm probably getting nore of the

treble, you know? Like -- or the, |ike, voice
ranges or things -- like, again, |I'mnot a sound
engineer. |'mjust judging with nmy ears. Like,

you know, when you're on the ground, you can
feel bass. You know, it's kind of how it works.

Q Sure. And directionally, which way is
Trade fromyour unit, if you're staring at the
all ey?

A It is straight dow the -- so it -- so,
you know, the alley's angled and we angle with
the alley. So it's |like straight down the angle
-- alley, and then a little to the left and then
it isthe newthing. And | can see a little bit

| i ke when people first walk out of the door into
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the summer garden, | can see them and then the
rest is behind, I'lIl just call it, the rooster
bui | di ng.

Q Sure. So the -- generally, it's to the
north and west of your unit. O excuse ne,

north and east --

AL Oh -- soif youwant to -- |ike, exact,
it -- 1 wiuld say it's west by northwest.
Q Is it east by northeast, correct, if

we're going for --

A, Oh, I'msorry, yeah, thank you. |
apol ogi ze, yes. East by northeast. Sorry about
t hat .

Q Sure. And then would you say Pl ayers
Cub is also a bit further north and east of
your unit?

A It's nore east. Kind of |ike, yeah,
it's like -- it's probably triple east with a
little north.

Q Alittle east. So a little north of
east. GCkay. | think that's everything | think
| had for you, M. Borgersen. Thank you very
much and appreciate your efforts throughout this
process to get us here as well.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.
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MR. ANDERSON: M. Sinkins, any
guestions?

MR SINKINS: No further questions.

MR. ANDERSON: Al'l right.

M. Borgersen, thank you very nuch for
your testinony today. All right.

MR. BORGERSEN: Thank you.

MR. ANDERSON. Do you have anot her
W tness you wish to call, sir?

MR SINKINS: | do. | also am aware
that M. Florio has a work conm tnent he has to
gointonow I'm-- 1 planto call M. John
D Anrore first, but M. Florio is going to be
unavai | abl e because of the length of the
heari ng, so --

MR. ANDERSON: All right. ['msorry.
Who's your next wi tness, sir?

MR, SINKINS: M. John D Anore.

MR. ANDERSON: M. D Anore, can you
cone on canera please, sir? M. D Anore, can
you conme on canera? Can you unnute yourself and
conme on canera? All right. Can you unnute
yoursel f, please, sir?

MR D AMORE: (No audi bl e response).

MR. ANDERSON: | cannot hear you.
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MR D AMORE: (No audi bl e response).
MR. ANDERSON: | cannot hear you, sir.
MR D AMORE: (No audi bl e response).
MR. ANDERSON: | cannot hear you.
REMOTE TECHNICIAN: |'lIl chat wth him

MR. ANDERSON: Ckay.

MR. SINKINS: W can't hear you, John.

MR. ANDERSON:. Qur |IT specialist is
wor king with him

MR, SINKINS: kay.

REMOTE TECHNI CI AN: | sent you a chat,
John. So what you want to do is just click the
down caret next to nmute, and then just see if
you have anot her m crophone option. Mybe
Real t ek, m crophone array Realtek. Yeah, you
just want to see if you have another option for
m crophone. |If you join through the web
browser, you may want to |log off and | og back on
and join via the app, the WbEx app.

MR, ANDERSON: Why don't you ask himto
| og off and then | og back and then | ook for him
and then el evate himagain? Mybe it'll work
this time, please.

REMOTE TECHNI Cl AN:  Yeah. Try | oggi ng

of f, logging back on. | also placed in the chat
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join by phone information, if that works better

for you.

MR. ANDERSON: All right. So |

t hi nk

he's going to do it by phone, so can you tell us

what -- | was trying to find out the | ast
digits of his phone nunber, so we'll know

he's the person to el evate.

f our

t hat

REMOTE TECHNI CI AN: He'll be the only

call -in user.

MR. ANDERSON: Okay, that's fine. |

t hought we were popular. | thought there

whol e bunch of folks there waiting on our

were a

channel. Al right, he's -- well, | guess he's

-- he needs to unnute hinsel f.
REMOTE TECHNI CI AN:  1' m sendi ng
request to unnute.

MR ANDERSON:  Ckay.

him a

MR D AMORE: |t unnuted? Do you --

MR. ANDERSON:. Yes, sir. | can hear
you. All right. | can't see you, but | can
hear you, so that's fine. |[|'ve seen you before,

so I'"'mfine.

MR. D AMORE: (i naudible).

MR ANDERSON:. M. D Anpre. Ckay, now

| can do both. Can -- | can see you and |
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hear you. Can you raise your right hand, sir?
VWHEREUPOQON,
JOHN D AMORE
was called as a wtness by counsel for the
Protestants and, after having been duly sworn,
was exam ned and testified as foll ows:
MR. ANDERSON: Your witness, M.
Si nki ns.
MR. SINKINS: Thank you very mnuch.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR SI NKI NS:
Q Can you pl ease state your nane and
addr ess?
A. I'mJohn D Anbre. M address is 1425
Rhode | sl and Avenue, Northwest, Unit 72.
Q Ckay. How long have you lived in your
hone?
A.  Since June of 2008.
Q Ckay. And what is your role wthin the
W1l 1lison Condom ni unf
A. Currently, I"'mthe president of the
Boar d.
Q Ckay. As president, have any of the
residents of the condom niumcone to you with

concerns regardi ng Trade?
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A Yes.

Q Ckay. What has been the nature of
t hose concerns?

A. The noise issues that we've been
di scussing and are part of this hearing, the
subj ect matter hereon.

Q Gkay. And when did you start receiving
t hese conplaints or expressions of concern?

A. The spring of |ast year, spring of
2025.

Q Ckay.

A. | believe that's when the outdoor patio
I nprovenents were occurring.

Q Ckay. Have you heard noise from Trade
when you' ve been in the condom ni um buil di ng?

A Yes.

Q GCkay. Were -- was that in your unit or
sonepl ace el se in the building?

A Inny unit, and I've listened in -- in
other units, such as Murray's and such.

Q Were the windows open or closed when
you heard the noise?

A In my unit, both.

Q Ckay. Have you had occasion to contact

the owners of Trade to seek assistance in
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reduci ng the noi se?

A. No, | did not, because we focus on
havi ng one of the Board nenbers, Miurray Hood, be
our forward person, so | have not had personal
cont act .

Q GCkay. Are you aware that M. Hood has
contacted the owners of Trade to seek
assi st ance?

A.  Yes.

Q Okay. And are you aware of what
Trade' s response has been to those requests?

A. Cenerally, yes.

Q Ckay. And what has those responses
been?

A Well, | believe it -- it seens as
t hough they have -- they -- they took -- they
attenpted to take steps either to inprove their
backyard, neaning the -- the garden, either for
our benefit or for their own business benefit,
but | believe that they -- you know, they --
they worked with -- they nmade changes to sone --
of sonme descri ption.

Q Have those changes been effective in
reduci ng the noi se?

A.  No, unfortunately.
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Q GCkay. Do you believe living near Trade
affects the value of the units in the WIIison,
and if so, how?

A. I'mbeginning to believe that it wll,
in the future, yes.

Q And why do you believe that?

A. Al matters like this, Board president,
we have to disclose when we issue the
condom ni um docunents to future purchasers. And
so we have this litigation -- | call it
litigation although it's not quite going on and
such, and that would have to be disclosed. So
the -- those docunents would go to -- and
realtors and the individuals would ask for what
is right or wong with the environnent, and this
woul d cone up. So | believe it will affect what
people -- how they think and about making an
i nvestnment in a honme in the WIIison.

Q GCkay. |If that application is granted
with this occupancy |evel and the hours of
operation as applied for, how do you think that
will affect the lives of the people residing in
the WIlison?

A. Pardon nme, M. Sinkins, again, please?

Q Yeah, I'mso sorry. |If Trade's
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application that's before the Board right nowis
granted with the hours of operation and the
occupancy | evels as provided for in the
application, how do you think that will affect
the lives of the people residing in the

WIllison?

A Well, it's just going to put it into
code, | guess, or into the relationship as to
that we will -- it'll be a relentless

envi ronnent of noise and that it's not going to
go away and there's not going to be any

| essening of it. So the inability of -- to
enj oy our hones, disturbance of our enjoynent
and such, inability to sleep will continue. It
wll -- I'"d have to | ook again exactly at the
change in the hours, but it's going to be sane
of kind, just going on a little later.

Q Ckay. Wat would you ask the Board to
do in this instance?

A. | believe I'd like to have the Board
reject this application for renewal as it's
submtted and then work to reduce or listen for
reduction in the hours to 10:00 p.m and 11:00
p. m weekdays and weekends and -- because |

t hi nk that about the only thing that seens that
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we are able to control is the hours, as conpared
to the decibels com ng out of there.

MR, SINKINS: Thank you. | have no
further questions.

MR. ANDERSON: M. M nor a.

MR. M NORA: Thank you, M. Chair.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR M NORA

Q M. D Anmore, just a question. You said
the -- you think the property val ues may
decrease in the future based on this -- the
noi se at Trade or based on the fact that you had
to have this protest and that's going to be the
record that you disclose to potential buyers? |
just wasn't clear.

A. Wll, the noise is going to be on
record going forward because | wll, as Board
president, make certain that our managi ng agent
I ncl udes notice of this in whatever we turn over
to people. Particularly, if there's ongoing,
"1l call it litigation, even though it's not,
but there's an ongoing regulatory action. And
-- and so it imredi ately becones, oh, the noise.

And so every owner is going to have to say

sonething or be -- or certainly should expect to
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be asked about it. And that's just going to
color the environnent for a sale or a resale, in
my opi ni on.

Q And you said that the creating a
relentl ess environnent of noise for you and your
unit. Can you be nore specific as to the tines
and dates this is relentl ess?

A Well, it's in the evening and it's on
t he weekends.

Q Okay. Soit's not relentless, it's
j ust eveni ngs and weekends?

A. It's arelentless sound on the -- in
the -- on those particular days. W're talking
t he Friday, Saturday evenings.

Q And starting at about what tine?

A. Oh, gosh. 1'd like to say happy hour,
but sort of a late part of the happy hour,
because as peopl e congregate, it -- it starts
getting louder and louder. So it doesn't wait
until dark in sumertine, it -- you know?

Q Sure. And then just foll ow up
qguestion, you're asking potentially for the
Board to reduce the sumrer garden hours. Do you
know how | ong Trade has had these hours in the

backyard, in the sumrer garden?
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A. Honestly, | think to what everybody is
sayi ng, because | never noticed that they had a
backyard maki ng -- you know, having a party out
there. It was relatively unobtrusive to ne.

Q Sure. You know, and | only ask because
you tal ked about an hours change, but there
really wasn't an hours change recently. That --
| just wanted to clarify on that. They' ve had
t hese 2: 00 and 3: 00 since 2023, and 1:45 and
2: 45 since 2018.

But you're suggesting that we should
reduce the hours in the back until 10:00 p. m

and 11:00 p.m?

A. Well, because the sound appears to now
be projected, | think it's -- certainly, we hear
it. And as a result of that, if that -- if it's

going to be allowed to project, neaning they
can't mtigate the actual sound creation, then |
believe that it would be in ny building s best
interest to have it stop at a reasonable tine in
the evening so that we can all enjoy going to
bed and such. Qur --

Q Sure and --

A. -- our own social evening hours
(i naudi bl e) --
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Q \What nmade you select the options -- the

hours of 10: 00 and 11: 007?

A. | believe in -- in looking around the

nei ghbor hood, 1've understood that, for exanple,

t hose ot her establishnents that were being
di scussed earlier, especially Nne, which I'ma
little nore famliar with because of where it

is, that's their hours; earlier hours.

Q That's not exactly accurate. That's --

the hours you're asking for are |l ess than those
of ot her nei ghboring outdoor sunmer gardens
nearby. | can go through the list of them
don't know if it's necessary here. Seens |ike
you all just selected the shortest hours and

decided to put that on Trade, but that's -- you

know, that's your -- it -- this is your opinion.

Wll, I"'mnot trying to qualify that.

Just saying that those, the hours of
10: 00 and 11: 00 are not reflective of all those
outdoor areas in the -- or excuse ne, outdoor
di ning and drinking areas in your vicinity of
the district. And then you were tal ki ng about

MR SINKINS: Objection. M. Mnorais

really testifying there. He's not --
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MR MNORA: | am--
MR. SINKINS: -- questioning.
MR, ANDERSON: All right. Sustai ned.
Al right. Wat else (inaudible) --
MR MNCORA: And then |I'm happy to
i ntroduce an exhibit show ng the hours of nearby
establishnments that are far |ater than what M.
D Anore says is standard for the area.
MR. SINKINS: Well, and | can al so set
-- I"'mgoing to be submtting sonme that show
simlar (inaudible) --
MR. ANDERSON:. All right, gentlenen. |
-- let's -- sorry.
Your question?
BY MR M NORA
Q Last question. M. D Anore, then
you' re tal king about the noise. Again, because
it's inportant here, the noise you' re hearing,
Is it human voices or is it nusic?
A It's crowd noise. It's voices.
Q Gkay. Thank you. That's --
A.  Amazingly so. They really do carry.
MR. M NORA: Appreciate it. No further
guesti ons.

MR. ANDERSON: Any questions by the

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N DD MDD P P P PP PP PP PP PP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b wWw N B+, O

Board nenbers?

M. D Anore, thank you very nuch for
your testinony. Have a great day, sir.

MR. D AMORE: Thank you, M. Anderson.

Sane to you.

MR. ANDERSON:  You're wel cone. Thank
you very much, sir.

Do you have another w tness, sir?

MR. SINKINS: So, M. Anderson, the
| ast w tness woul d be Joe Florio, who
unfortunately is in a work obligation at this
nmonment .

MR, ANDERSON: Ckay. How --

MR SINKINS: 1'd rather --

MR. ANDERSON. Well, we're going to
conclude this hearing today, sir. So is he
going to be avail abl e today?

MR, SINKINS: Bear with ne. He
nmessaged ne. | nean, he was avail abl e.
Unfortunately, this has gone sone tine.

MR. ANDERSON: Well, you should have --
|"msorry, (inaudible) --

MR. SINKINS: He'll be avail abl e at
5.00 p.m

MR ANDERSON: Oh.
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MR. S| NKI NS: He's avail able at 5:00

p. m

MR. ANDERSON: And how | ong do you
think his testinony wll be?

MR SINKINS: Probably, like, 25
mnutes or so. | can't speak for how |l ong the
cross-exam nation wll be.

MR. ANDERSON:. All right. So you're
saying he'll be available at 5:00 p.m, and then
| guess we'll stay off the record. W'IIl take a
br eak.

MR. SINKINS: kay.

MR. ANDERSON: Because | -- it's ny --
we're -- we are going to end this hearing today.

And so we wll, we'll remain off the record

until 5:00 p. m

"1l -- what |'Il dois that I'll --
|l et me ask the Board nenbers, do you want to go
I n executive session or do you want to take a
br eak?

MR. JONES: We can take a break here.

MR. ANDERSON: All right. Al right,
so we're off the record until 5:00 p.m

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter

went off the record at 4:29 p.m and resuned at

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

140

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com



https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N DD MDD P P P PP PP PP PP PP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b wWw N B+, O

5:01 p.m)

MR. ANDERSON: We're back on the
record.

Do you have -- is there -- okay. Do
you have another witness, sir? M. Sinkins, do
you have another witness? W're back on the
record.

MR SINKINS: Oh, I'msorry. | didn't
realize | hadn't unnmuted. Yes. 1'd like to
have Joe Florio provide testinony.

MR. ANDERSON: M. Florio, can you
rai se your right hand, please?

VWHEREUPOQON,

JCE FLORI O
was called as a witness by counsel for the
Protestants and, after having been duly sworn,
was exam ned and testified as foll ows:

MR. ANDERSON: Your witness, sir.
Thank you.

MR SINKINS: Well, thank you.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR SI NKI NS:
Q Could you please state your nane and
your role, please?

A. M nane is Joe Florio, and I amthe ANC
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comm ssi oner for ANC 2F.

Q Ckay. How long have you been in that
rol e?

A. Three and a half years, roughly.

Q GCkay. And why are you here?

A. | am here because | amthe conm ssi oner
that has standing in a protest regarding Trade's
reapplication for their liquor |icense.

Q Gkay. And do you take a position on
Trade' s application?

A.  Yes.

Q And what is that position?

A. M position is that Trade's |icense
shoul d be renewed with adjusted hours for the
summer garden. Specifically, the ANCis
requesting that the closing hours would be
m dni ght, Sunday through Thursday, and 1:30 a.m

Friday through Saturday. |'malso including in
this |language for a section on noise in a
settl enment agreenment that would allow for a
further decrease in hours of the -- of -- of the
sumer garden if there are two violations during
a consecutive six-nonth period attributed to the
out door space.

| wll say that I'mreferencing an
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exact | anguage found in Exhibit 2 that |'ve
provi ded the Board for this hearing.
MR, SINKINS: Okay. Could we -- let's
nove on to that Exhibit 2. I'mjust pulling it
up right now.
Could I please share ny screen?

MR. ANDERSON: Well, what is Exhibit 2?

MR. SINKINS: Exhibit 2 is a Settlenent
Agreenment dated July 1, 2015, between Trade and
the ANC 2F, the original Settlenent --

MR. ANDERSON:. Ckay. That is the
current -- is that the current Settlenent
Agr eenment ?

MR SINKINS: That's the original
Settl enment Agreenent.

MR, ANDERSON: Ckay. Al right. Hold
on. Al right. So where are we on the -- where
on the Settl enent Agreenent you're referencing?

MR, SINKINS: Well, | wanted to first
just sinply share ny screen so | could show the
Settl enment Agreenent.

MR, ANDERSON: OCh, I'msorry. OCh, I'm
sorry.

MR SINKINS: And then M. Florio is
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going to provide testinony on it.
MR. ANDERSON:. Ch, okay. On, |
apol ogi ze. | thought -- okay, go ahead.
MR. ORELLANA: Access granted.

MR SINKINS: Thank you so nuch. Here.

Ckay.
BY MR SI NKI NS:

Q WM. Florio, could you sort of walk us
t hrough the history of how we got here perhaps
with reference, fromthe begi nning?

A. Yes. So just briefly wal king through
the original Settlenent Agreenent, and this also
i ncl udes an anendnent. The original Settlenent
Agreenent was approved in 2015 wth limted
summer garden hours to 11: 00 p.m Sunday
t hrough Thursday and m dni ght on Friday and
Saturday. In 2018, the ANC supported an
anendnent extending those hours as reflected in
t he Exhibit.

The Board approved these outdoor hours
of 1:45 a.m Sunday through Thursday and 2: 45
a.m Friday and Saturday. The Amendnent al so
added | anguage in Section 5, providing for
addi tional protections for neighbors by all ow ng

the hours to revert back to those 11:00 p.m and
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m dni ght if recurring noise violations occurred.

Q Ckay.

A.  And under those extended hours, you
know, Trade has operated with those extended
hours for several years w thout conplaints.

Q Gkay. So what happened in 20237

A. In 2023, Trade applied for a
substantial change to their license. To expand
its prem ses, they're expanding inside, and then
there -- were al so expandi ng the outdoor summer
garden as well. At the tine, the ANC worked
with the applicant, and the summer garden hours
were extended slightly further, 15 m nutes each,
for 2:.00 a.m Sunday through Thursday and 3: 00
a.m Friday through Saturday.

The ANC went ahead with this because
there had been no conplaints during the prior
years of operation. | believe at the tinme, we
al so pulled reports asking, you know, from ABCA
i f there were any conplaints, and there were
none. So yeah.

Q GCkay. And I'd like to share ny screen
briefly just so we can show the order on the
Settlenment Agreenent. This is your Exhibit 4,

correct?
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A. Correct. That is nmy Exhibit 4.

Q Ckay. Here we go.

A And | wll also add that this version
renoved t hat | anguage regarding noise if there
were violations. So that is not present in --
In this version.

Q Al right. Thank you. So let's nove
to, now, can you tal k about your understandi ng
of the capacity of the sunmer garden prior to
expansi on and then what happened after
expansi on?

A. Sure. So prior to expansion, the
sunmer garden was 40 -- was approxi mately set
for 46 patrons. And then the expanded sunmer
garden capacity grew to 133 patrons for the
out door space. | believe that's 75 seated and
58 st andi ng.

Q And what do you think that this
timeline shows?

A | -- this tineline is inportant and |
believe it shows because it denonstrates that
t he nei ghborhood |ived with I ate night hours for
many years w thout issue. The concerns raised
today, | don't believe they're sinply about the

exi stence of those hours. | believe the issue
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now i s a conbination of substantially increased
capacity together with those |ate night hours.
In ny view, when a significantly |arger nunber
of patrons are occupying that outdoor space |ate
at night, the cunulative effect of nornal
conversation carries directly into the nearby
residential units, as we heard fromw t nesses
earlier today.

Q Thank you very nuch. |'mnow going to
nove on to your Exhibit 1. This is a noise
study, also one of ny exhibits that is -- was a
noi se study report prepared by Trinity
Consul tants and requested by --

MR. M NORA: (bjection.

MR. ANDERSON: Hold on. What's the
nature of the objection, sir?

MR. M NORA: There's no foundation laid
for this report nor is there anything in the
report attesting to the preparer's engineering
criteria or any of the sound device calibrations
or mai ntenances that are required to be
adm ssi ble in ABCA heari ng.

MR. ANDERSON: So whose -- M. Sinkins,
whose report is this?

MR SINKINS: So the WIIlison
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Condom nium hired Trinity Consultants, which is
an acoustical engineering conpany to conduct --
to visit the alleyway in the WIlison and
conduct acoustical readings. And this is a
report provided by Trinity Consultants to the
WIllison. This has been submtted by ne to ABCA
nmonths ago. [It's part of our evidence and al so

MR. ANDERSON: Right, but why do you
have M. Florio testifying about a report that
he was not even a party to this report because
you're saying that this is a report that was
conmm ssioned by the --

MR. SINKINS: But he's also -- he --
he's been provided a copy of it as well.

MR. ANDERSON: No, but -- all right.
But he's not a party to this. It's -- thisis a
report that was done, a noise report that was
done by the WIIlison Condom nium and you shoul d
have had the person who did the report to cone
here and testify. | can't have M. Florio

testify about a report that he did not author.

Are -- does M. Florio have any
expertise in noise? | nean, | -- what is M.
Florio' s expertise? | nmean, | don't -- | nean,
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you can put the -- you can put the docunent in
evi dence because -- well --

MR. SINKINS: Yes.

MR. ANDERSON: All right. Well, 1"l
think about it if you want to nove this docunent
in evidence, but I"'mnot just -- |I'mnot going
to have M. Florio testify about it. | nean, |
can read the report.

MR. SINKINS: That's fine.

MR. ANDERSON: The Board -- |'mjust
saying the Board can read the report and get as
much as the Board can get as M. Florio is going
to testify because he's not a -- he did not do
the report and you haven't shared wth ne that
he has an expertise in this area.

MR, SINKINS: We'll nove on.

MR, ANDERSON: Al l right.

BY MR SI NKI NS:

Q Bear with ne. So M. Florio, I'd |ike
to present a series of emails between yourself
and M. M nora.

MR. M NORA: (bjection. These are
emai | exchanges about settlenent agreenent
negoti ations or potential settlenent

negotiations. W've reviewed the PIF. That's
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the contents of this email.
MR. ANDERSON: If that is there -- if
that is the gist of the emails, settlenent
negotiations are not -- | cannot allow those to
be a part of the record. So if it's -- so if it
-- if the email specifically tal ks about terns
where the party's trying to settle this matter,
It 1s not adm ssi bl e.

MR SINKINS: Al right. W'Il nove

on.
M. --
MR. ANDERSON: Hold on. Hold on. Hold
on. Hold on a mnute, please. M. -- well,
al though -- | usually do not do this, but since
M. Florio, you' re the ANC comm ssioner, | know

you're in submttal of your testinony and you
had rai sed your hands and | can't really have
you tal k. Hold on.

Ckay. Go ahead. Go ahead, sir. o
ahead, sir. If you have -- do you have anot her
guestion?

MR SINKINS: No, | -- but there's --
so | don't have anot her person, but we have nore
guesti ons.

MR. ANDERSON: No. | said do you have

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N DD MDD P P P PP PP PP PP PP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b wWw N B+, O

151
anot her question?

MR. SINKINS: Yeah, yeah, | do. Sure.
BY MR SI NKI NS:

Q M. Florio, let's start tal king about
sone of the other -- the settlenent agreenents
relating to other establishnents in the area, if
we could do that. So first, let's tal k about
Pl ayers C ub.

Can you tell ne what you understand
Wi th respect to the hours of operation and the
requi renents of the settlenent agreenent for
Pl ayers C ub?

A. | understand that their summer garden
has cl osing hours from m dnight -- sorry, Sunday
t hrough Thursday at m dni ght and Friday and
Saturday at 1:30 a.m

Q GCkay. I|I'mgoing to share ny screen.
Players Club. | believe this is -- bear with
me. |I'mtrying to find the settl enent agreenent

for Players Club. Here we go.

So you said you believe -- | nean,
could you -- would you m nd just readi ng out
t hose hours again for the summer garden as shown
I n Paragraph 1?

A.  Yes. "Sunday through Thursday, closing
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by 12:00 a.m Friday through Saturday, closing
by 1:30 a.m"

Q Ckay. Thank you. Then --

MR. MEADOAS: Point of information.
What date is that?

MR. SINKINS: That is dated February 5,
2018.

MR. ANDERSON: Ckay.
BY MR SI NKI NS:

Q GCkay. Now, I'd like to sort of bring
up Nunmber Nine. What's your understandi ng of
Nunber Ni ne's hours of operation?

A, One nonent. |'msorry. Bear with ne

for one nonent.

Q Sure.
MR. ANDERSON:. Are -- is there a
docunent in the record that you can -- that you

can --

MR SINKINS: Yeah, I"'mgoing to share
my screen right now.

MR. ANDERSON: Counsel, why don't you
just --

MR. SINKINS: This is off in M.
Florio's Exhibit 6.

MR. ANDERSON: So bring it up and then
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have him | ook at it.

MR SINKINS: | am [|I'mdoing it right
now. | was just scrolling down.

THE WTNESS: So the hours of
operation, interior hours of operation, Sunday
t hrough Thursday, 12:00 p.m to 12:00 a.m, and
Friday through Saturday, 12:00 p.m to 3:00 a.m
The sidewal k cafe is Sunday through Thursday,
12:00 p.m to 11:00 p.m, and Friday through
Saturday, 12:00 p.m to 12:00 a.m
BY MR SI NKI NS:

Q And there they are. Those are sidewal k
cafe hours there. | think -- do you have any,
you know, sort of closing comments you'd like to
make about this application?

A.  Yeah. Yes, thank you. | do. Fromthe
ANC s perspective, | just want to reiterate that
the goal has always been to find a solution that
allows trade to continue operating successfully
whil e al so protecting the peace, order, and
qui et that nearby residents are entitled to and
expect within their hones.

And that | would like to just reiterate
my request for the adjusted hours that | stated

at the start of ny tinme before you. And so |
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just want to say thank you for the Board for
havi ng me and for your consideration.

MR, SINKINS: | have no further
guesti ons.

MR. ANDERSON: M. M nora?

MR. M NORA: Sure. Thank you.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR M NORA:

Q Comm ssioner, you're tal king about the
Pl ayers Cl ub settlenent agreenent, it was
February 2018, correct?

A.  Yes.

Q Ckay. And that was the -- and their
hours were -- end at 12:00 a.m and 1:30 a.m
Just looking at that, sanme tine, sane ANC, the
settl enent agreenent that was anended in 2018,
to allow for trade to have its later hours
actually cane after that, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Correct. So it wasn't as if the
Pl ayers Club hours were controlling on all
establ i shments around themat the tinme, correct?

A. The ANC considers protests case by
case.

Q Exactly. The ANC al so considers the
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hi story of the operator, anong other criteria,
correct?

A. Correct.

Q GCkay. So now, you're tal king about
this conprom se or whatever, this solution that
you have for us where the summer garden hours
woul d cl ose earlier than the rest of the
est abl i shnment .

Are you famliar with the | ayout of
trade?

A | am

Q Yes, you are. kay.

A Sorry. | amfamliar with the | ayout
of trade before the expansion.

Q Ckay. Wwell, just to -- for your
edi fication, the main entrance that was there
before is still the main entrance currently
today. The only other entrance or exit -- neans
of egress is the rear alleyway, the double doors
fromthe summer garden through the rear
al | eyway, and in another one on the 1408 si de,
but it's not -- again, for energency ingress and
egress only.

So | guess, ny question to you is, if

the entire establishnent is full and you want
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the outdoor area to close earlier, where are

t hose 100-pl us peopl e supposed to go if not

spilling out into the alley? Because they

certainly shouldn't be able to go back into the
interior and have the interior increase or,

excuse ne, exceed its approved occupancy,

correct?

A. | woul d expect the nmanagenent of
patrons to be settled by the establishnment.
There are many exanpl es of establishnments within
ANC 2F that have earlier closing hours for their
out door spaces and have | ater indoor operating
hours.

Q But do you know how many of those
spaces have an additional neans of egress from
the summer garden or sidewal k cafe directly to
the outside w thout having to go back into the
interior of the establishnment?

A.  No.

Q OCkay. And I only bring this up because
part of the reason why the hours were anended in
2018 was to prevent people having to spill out
onto P Street into the alley when the sunmer
garden closed earlier and also to allow for

snokers to be -- to remain within the prem ses.
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That's in the recitals of the 2018 anended

settl enment agreenent.
So then | guess ny question to you is:

| f you don't expect -- if you expect the

busi ness to nmanage this mandate you're doi ng,
that you -- that you're putting forward,
realistically, wouldn't that nean that they al so
have to decrease their interior capacity to
allow for, at any point, 100 people to cone in
fromthe outside to the inside, to potentially

| eave at, you know, 11:00 or 12:00 or at the
hours you put forth?

A | don't really set capacity limts as
an ANC commi ssioner. The -- how you -- how an
establ i shnment manages their patrons is up to
t hem

Q Well, as an ANC conmi ssioner, if you
set the hours, that's establishing the occupancy
of that place at zero after a certain tine,
woul dn't you say?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Thank you. So then going back
to this, the nore recent settl enent agreenent
with Trade, the 2023 that allowed for the

expansi on and the additional 15 mnutes to the

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N DD MDD P P P PP PP PP PP PP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b wWw N B+, O

158

outside, | nean, you and | discussed that at
| ength, correct?

A, Yes.

Q Yes. Because you're the signatory on
that settlenent agreenent, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Correct. GCkay. So what |I'mhearing is
we worked with the ANC from 2018 until today and
continue to work with the ANC. W -- we've nade
overtures for neetings with you and the other
comm ssioners to cone review the alley behind
and i nside Trade, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Have you taken up M. Guggennbs on any
of those?

A Well, I'"'ma volunteer ANC conm ssi oner.
| -- | do have other obligations during ny day.
But | recall that there was tine for our

al cohol policy commttee to go take a tour of
the space, and | believe that that tour

happened. | do not recall the exact day or tine
of that tour.

Q Wwell, I can tell you that was in My,
so that wasn't during this protest when the

protests were filed. And we nmade overtures to
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not just you but the other conmm ssioners, you

know, in Septenber, many tines, and in -- all

the way up to Decenber 23rd. And neither you

nor any ot her comm ssioners have taken us up on

that, correct? As at |east to your know edge

for the other comm ssioners?

A. | can only really speak for nyself.
can't speak for other comm ssioners. But
correct. | have not visited the space as it
exi sts today.

Q And have any of the other comm ssioners
reported during an ANC or APC policy conmttee
neeting that they've reviewed the space since
it's been expanded?

A.  You m ght have to define when. | know
that they are -- | know that there was a tour of
t he space possibly during work.

Q Starting fromJune 2025 to present,
have you heard from any ot her comm ssioners,
either in passing or as part of the official
record of an APC commttee neeting or a full ANC
2F nmeeting, that they've taken up M. Quggennos
on his offers to cone review the space and to
listen to the noise?

A. | don't recall.
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Q GCkay. So I'mgoing to take that aside.

No. So then, | guess I'mjust sort of confused
as to what we're doing here when it's been
established that Trade has been a long-tinme part
of this community, has a long history of working
wi th the Agency, and now sonehow these issues
can't be settled other than by, in your mnd, a
reduction of the hour to the outside that |eaves
the operator in a position to have to
essentially either have everyone pour out the
(inaudible) in the alley, which parties have
said they don't want, or to actually keep the
interior cut by another 100 people or so to
accomodate the potential for the entire sumrer
garden having to close at the tinmes you
reconmend.

MR SINKINS: This question has been
asked three or four different tinmes and been
responded to three or four different tines.

MR MNORA: |I'mjust --

MR SINKINS: | think it's been asked
and answer ed.

MR. ANDERSON: It m ght have been, M.
M nora --

THE WTNESS: |'msorry. |Is --
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MR. ANDERSON: Hold on, M. Florio.
Hold on. Hold on. bjection.

" mgoing to sustain the objection.

Let's nove on. He -- you have asked that
gquestion, M. -- you have asked that question,
M. M nora.

MR M NORA: Sure. No, we're good.
BY MR M NORA
Q Wwell, then | guess final question would
just be then: Wat other potential solutions
you coul d have other than reducing the hours in
this case or to settle these di sagreenents that
you seemto have, the ANC has with M.

Guggennos' operations in that regard?

A Well, if egress is of an issue that is
a barrier to shortening the hours, I'mcertainly
open to conversations about that. | wll say

that at the tinme of considering the |license or,
sorry, the application for a substantial change
for the increase of capacity for the summer
garden, at the tinme when the ANC was consi deri ng
that, the sumer garden in its current state did
not exist. It was still the smaller area that
was only able to fit 46 patrons. So there was

no real way for the ANC to know if this would be
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an issue until it, you know, becane reality and
you started operating or the -- the applicant
started operating with full capacity and full
hour s.

| wll say that this is where we are
now, now that we see everything, you know, as it
is on paper with the hours and the capacity.
That's why we're here today. That's why we're
protesting the -- the reapplication for the
liquor license. So true, at the tinme, the ANC
really only was able to consider -- you know,
there were no conplaints at the tine. No
nei ghbors had reached out to ne at the tine we
wer e considering the 2023 substantial change.
But now that there are conplaints, we are going
t hrough the protest process. This is where

we're at. So | just wanted to provide that

cont ext.
Q | appreciate that. And on the topic of
conpl aints, when this process -- this protest

first started, | think I'd asked you whet her the
ANC had recei ved conplaints fromresidents other
than those that have filed the protest. Do you
recall what your answer was at that tine?

A Yes, | -- | do recall what ny answer
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was, and the answer was that | have not heard
fromother residents besides the fol ks rel ated
to or within the group of five.

Q So then, again, | nean, not to beat a
dead horse, that was the beginning. This is at
the followup APC conmttee neeting. | asked
you the same question in the record.

Was it the sanme response then?

AL Yes. And | wll also say that | think
It's inmportant that even if it's one resident or
a couple residents that are being inpacted by
noi se, you know, the ANC should listen to them

Q Understandable. And then | ast
guestion: Right before |ast nediation, do you
recall -- this was in early January. |'d asked
you if you'd received any subsequent conplaints
from any ot her nei ghborhood residents or
conmmuni ty nenbers other than the ones that have
filed the protest letter.

Do you recall what your answer was
t hen?

A | believe it was still, | have not
heard of any other conplaints outside of this
gr oup.

Q Perfect. So then this group of eight
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are the only people that you had conplaints with
about Trade's operations, whatever size,
what ever hours they've had; is that correct?

A. Only conplaints as the sunmer garden
began to operate at the new capacity and the new
size and the -- wth the extended hours to 3:00
a. m

Q But again, so then the question | asked
was: Have you heard any conpl aints from anyone
el se that's under this protest |etter about the
summer garden's expanded operations, whether
they relate to the hours or the capacity?

A. | have not.

MR. M NORA: Ckay. Thank you. No
further questions.

MR. ANDERSON: M. Florio, is this the
cl osest residential building to this, to the
est abl i shnent ?

THE WTNESS: |'mnot sure. | --
can't speak to the exact distance.

MR. ANDERSON: No, |I'mjust --

THE WTNESS: It does share an
al | eyway.

MR. ANDERSON: No, but |'msaying, is

there another residential building that is
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closer to this establishnment? That's all |I'm
asking. | -- I'"mnot asking the distance. [|'m
just saying, is there another residenti al
building that's closer to this establishnment
than -- yeah, that's closer to this
establ i shnment than any ot her establishnment?

THE WTNESS: There's a couple
different buildings. There -- there's probably
three different nmulti-famly buildings wthin
that sanme close proximty.

MR. ANDERSON:. And you have not heard
any conplaints fromany of those other
resi dents?

THE WTNESS: Correct. | -- | have not
been contacted by any other residents.

MR. ANDERSON. Have you filed any
conpl ai nts? Because | know you had nenti oned
before in your exhibits -- which exhibit is the
current settlenent agreenent? D d you disclose
that for --

THE WTNESS: | -- I'msorry, | did.
One nonent. Exhibit 4.

MR. ANDERSON: Is it Exhibit 4 the
exhibit that has all the other establishments?

THE WTNESS: OCh. Onh, sorry. You --
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i f you' re asking about other --

MR. ANDERSON: No, no, no. |'m asking
you about Trade for their current settl enent
agreenment. Is it in Exhibit 47?

THE W TNESS: Yes, it is.

MR. ANDERSON: | have not been able to
find it. Wat page of -- you know, |'m | ooking
at the exhibits, but I -- it's -- they're not
necessarily labeled. I|I'mtrying to figure out
howis it that -- how fol ks know what Exhibit 4
I S because --

THE WTNESS: | -- well, | --
submtted a -- a protest information form and |

nunbered ny exhibits, so --

MR. ANDERSON: No, |'m | ooking at what
-- I"mnot sure whose exhibits |I'm]looking at,
but they're -- what was provided to ne, they're
not nunbered, so --

Al right. So the substantial change
that was agreed to in '25, specifically, that
was to expand -- it was to expand the operation
from-- the summer garden from39 to 130, from
39 to 133, or from49 -- hold on, one -- let ne
see. | want to make sure that --

Al right. So the substantial change
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that was agreed to was to expand the capacity
from45 to 133; is that correct?

THE W TNESS: Approxi mately, but yes.

MR. ANDERSON: And it was also to
expand the hours fromwhat to what?

THE WTNESS: This was -- and | just
want to nmake one small note. This is of June of
2023, but the hours were changed from1:45 a. m

Sunday through Thursday to 2:00 a.m, and then
2:45 a.m to 3:00 a.m Friday and Saturday --

MR. ANDERSON: So the hours --

THE WTNESS: -- for the sumrer garden.

MR. ANDERSON: So the hours was --

THE WTNESS: And -- and indoor.

MR. ANDERSON: So the hours was j ust
extend -- extended for 15 mnutes, but they --
for you, the substantial change was the
expansion from45 to 133?

THE WTNESS: Oh, correct. There was a
-- yes, there was a different substanti al
change. | believe the applicant there -- you're
going to have to ask counsel for the applicant,
but -- I'"'mforgetting what the reason was, but
t hey needed to adjust the capacity size for the

i ndoor and t he outdoor, but correct. But we
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were just considering the capacity changes at
that tine.

MR. ANDERSON: Have you ever filed a
conpl aint -- what specific -- what was in the
settl enment agreenent regardi ng noi se or noise
conpl ai nts?

THE WTNESS: Well, one, | want to
answer your first question. No, | have not
personally filed a conplaint. | don't live that
close to Trade as to hear anything that they
woul d do. Let ne |look at the settl enent
agreenent regarding Trade. One second.

MR. ANDERSON: | know you had tal ked
about the fact that there was sone provision
regardi ng reduci ng the hours --

THE W TNESS: (Oh.

MR. ANDERSON: -- sonething. | don't
know. You're -- you tell nme. | can't find the
settl enment agreenent, so.

THE WTNESS: Sure. Sure. So ny -- SO
the second exhibit that | provided was the 2018
Trade settl enent agreenent anmendnent. There was
an anendnent to that regardi ng hours and
regardi ng | anguage for noi se.

MR. ANDERSON:. My position is that
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what's the -- | -- what's the current settlenent
agreenment? The -- yeah -- it's irrel evant what
was in 2018, if there was a --

THE WTNESS: GCkay. All right. That's

fine.

MR. ANDERSON: -- if there's a current
settl enment agreenent that -- so, specifically,
and | said before, I can't find it. And you're

sayi ng what exhibit is the settlenent agreenent?

| can't -- | don't know what it is. [ ' 'm
| ooking. Maybe | don't have it. [|'mnot saying
it's not in evidence, but | -- not in-- it was

not disclosed, but | can't find it to | ook at
it, okay?

THE WTNESS: Are you aski ng what ny
ot her request was for the Board?

MR. ANDERSON: No, that was not what
the question | was asking.

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

MR. ANDERSON: The question |I'mtrying
to find out fromyou, it's why is it that --
think there was sone provision in the -- |
guess, what I'mtrying to find out is that by
review ng their record, they have no record that

any conplaints was ever filed. So | nean, it's
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-- you're asking the Board to reduce their -- to
reduce their hours, but in review ng the Board's
records regardi ng the conplaints, we have no
conpl ai nt s.

There are no conplaints filed to say
that there's any substantiated noi se conpl ai nts.
The investigator during his investigation, he
went there late at night and there's nothing in

his report that supports that woul d say that
there isn't a noise.
So tell me howis it that the Board --

you' re asking the Board to reduce hours and

there's nothing in the record -- in the record
to support what you're asking for. | -- |I'm
open -- | amopen, but I'm-- so what |'m asking

Is that where --

MR. SINKINS: So Board nenber, wasn't
-- hasn't the noise -- the testinony you've
heard today part of the record?

MR. ANDERSON: M. -- M. Sinkins, | am
not speaking to you. |'masking a question to
the wtness. The bottomline is that this is
about noise. You're asking the Board to reduce
t he hours because of noise. And what |'m asking

you is that you're stating that you have never
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filed -- you have never filed a noise conplaint
against this establishnent; is that correct?

THE WTNESS: Correct.

MR. ANDERSON: And are you aware of any
noi se conpl aint that was ever filed by any other
menbers of the ANC?

THE WTNESS: | am not aware.

MR. ANDERSON: And you al so said you
have -- you're -- outside of the protestants,
you have not been contacted by any other
residents regarding noise comng fromthis
establishnent; is that -- that's correct?

THE WTNESS: That's correct, but |

al so support ny residents who are being i npacted

by noi se.
MR. ANDERSON:  |'m not --
THE WTNESS: No matter if it's --
MR. ANDERSON: |'m not disputing what

you said, sir. O course, as the ANC
comm ssi oner, you support. I'mjust trying to
get sone clarification fromyou to say what is
it that -- it leaves ne alot to -- | -- I'm
reaching, so | just need to figure out what's in
the -- what's in the record that whatever

deci sion the Board nakes, it has to be supported
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by the record. And that's why |'masking this

guesti on.

That's what -- to point nme sonething in
the record that I can hold -- if I"'mgoing to
make a decision, | can hold ny hat on to say,

this is what the record, because you | ook at
their investigative history, there is a series
of conplaints. And | -- I'maware that the
standard is that we have -- in order for their

-- in order for there to be a noise conpl aint

for us to find themfor we -- the Board has to
experience -- the Agency, the investigator has
to go there and substantiate the -- so it's a

different standard for substantiation and a
di fferent standard where the resident could
conplain, we go there, and we say it's not
substanti ated, but at |least there is a list of
conplaints to say residents have conpl ai ned and
conpl ai ned, and by the tinme the Agency goes
there, they've turned the nusic dowmm. So that's
all 1" m asking.

But one | ast question, let ne ask you
this: Are we tal king about anplified noise or
are we tal king about just noise on the summer

garden by just peopl e hangi ng around?
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THE WTNESS: W are only tal king about
noi se fromthe sumer garden that are fromthe
patrons. This is not about -- in ny view, this
I's not about anplified nusic or noi se.

MR, ANDERSON:. Al right. Thank you.
Any ot her questions by any of the Board nenbers?

Go ahead, M. Meadows.

And then you, M. Quinn.

MR. MEADOAS:  Yeah, | didn't --
Comm ssi oner, good afternoon. Yeah, | didn't
really have anything to ask, but this |ast
statenent that you nmade, you nentioned your
concern, and even in the beginning of this
entire hearing, the concern was vocal noi se,
vocal fromthe individual resident -- | nean,
the patrons in the summer garden yet we had two
people testify they were concerned about the
bass, the thunping in the bass of the anplified
musi c.

So that's a little disconnecting, but,
| guess, | wll ask you, you put this 2015, you
had the original agreenent with them then you,
agai n, came back in 2018, had anot her settl enent
agreenent and that one you nentioned had a -- an

anendnent to it. You also said that there were
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no -- that anmendnent said that if things happen,
then we would want to | ower your hours. No --
not hi ng happened. You did not |ower the hours.
Then they cane back for the substantial change
in 2023, and that was July.

Did you have a agreenent attached to
that one, a simlar side provision?

THE W TNESS: Regarding the noise?

MR. MEADOAS: Yes. In the 2023 --

THE WTNESS: No. In -- in the revised
settl enent agreenent, no. There was no -- no.
W -- that provision from2018 did not -- was

not included into the 2023 versi on.

MR. MEADOWG: Ckay. That's
interesting. Al right. | thank you for your
time, and | thank you, M. Chairnman.

MR. ANDERSON: Ms. Qui nn?

You're wel cone, sir.

M5. QUNN It -- I --1'"dlike to find
out whet her ny understanding of the -- of your
testi nony about the noise is correct. Wen we
tal k about the noise being a product of kind of
the voices frompeople, it -- it's not -- you're
not tal king about a situation where you have

peopl e just wal king by the busi ness or just
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standing in front of the business, but rather
the inpact of having this drastic increase in
capacity, which then leads to all these people
congregated in this small space that is now

anplifying what would normally be just natural

noi se.

Is it -- is that right?

THE W TNESS: Correct.

M5. QU NN. Ckay. Al right. Wwell,
thank you for that. | appreciate your testinony

and | particularly appreciate that what |

t hought | heard fromyou was a real attenpt to
take a bal anced approach at trying to address
the concerns of your constituents in |ight of
havi ng this business that has had a really
positive inpact in the nei ghborhood and positive
relationship with the nei ghborhood.

So | understand that it's a really
tight rope to handle, and it sounds |ike you' ve
done -- put forth the best effort at this point,
so it's great to hear from you.

That's all | have, Chair.

MR. ANDERSON: Thank you. M. -- M.
M nora, any redirect?

MR M NORA: No, | don't think so.
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Thank you t hough, M. Chair.

MR. ANDERSON: M. Sinkins, any --

MR. SINKINS: No, | have no further
guesti ons.

MR. ANDERSON:. Thank you, M. Florio --

MR SINKINS: Thank you.

MR. ANDERSON: -- for your testinony
today. And you see the ANC cannot speak that
the Board doesn't try to acconmopdate the ANC
schedule. W took a half an hour break to nmake
sure that you testified here today, sir, okay?

MR FLORIO | very much appreciate the
Board's willingness and | very nuch appreciate
it. Thank you.

MR. ANDERSON: You're wel come, sir.

M. Sinkins, any other w tnesses?

MR. SINKINS: No, | have no further
W t nesses. Thank you.

MR. ANDERSON:. Before you rest, are
there any docunents that you're trying to --
you're trying to nove into evidence, sir?
Because | said docunents are not in evidence
until they're noved into evidence.

MR SINKINS: Yeabh.

MR. ANDERSON: If you're speaking to
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nme, you're on nute.

MR SINKINS: Oh, I'mso sorry. |
t hought | unnuted. Yes, I'd like to nove into
evi dence Docunents 1 through 9 as set forth in
the protestants' exhibit |ist submtted on
Novenber 4th to the Board, and also M. Florio's
Exhibits 1 through 7 as he submitted to the
Board al so on Novenber 4th of -- or I'msorry,
of March 4th of this year.

MR. M NORA: (nbj ecti ons.

MR. ANDERSON: What are the nature of
your objections, sir?

MR. M NORA: Ckay. Wiere to begin? W
haven't even really seen nost of the itens he
was tal king about in the PIFs that he's trying
to introduce, but going through it, starting
with M. Florio's, | suppose, we already tal ked
about the sound study that should not be
adm ssi bl e because even if you wanted to give it
wei ght, | don't have an opportunity to cross-
examne it, which is a requirenent under the
Adm ni strative Proceedi ngs Act.

MR. ANDERSON: What exhibit is that?

MR MNORA: That is the Trinity

Consul tant sound study that was referred to.
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MR. ANDERSON: And that's exhibit
nunber what ?

MR. M NORA: Nunber 1.

MR, SINKINS: That's ny Exhibit Nunber

MR MNORA: It's also nunber 1 -- yes
MR. ANDERSON: I'mgoing to -- |I'm--
amgoing to allow Exhibit 1 over your objection.
Exhibit 1 is a part of -- it's also included in
the case report.
MR. M NORA: Yes, but just that there
was a sound study. |I'mjust saying for the

probative value is our concern.

MR. ANDERSON: [I'mjust -- well, as |
said, I will give it whatever worth -- whatever
weight it's worth. It isin-- it is in the

case report filed by the investigator. So it is
already -- it is already in the record because
it's a part of the case report.

MR M NCRA: Then | would just note
t hat when | ooking at that, to see the closing
time of Players Cub and the closing tine of
Trade and see where the noi se goes down.

MR. ANDERSON: Ckay. Al right. So
what ot her exhibit -- what are the exhibits

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

178

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com



https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N DD MDD P P P PP PP PP PP PP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b wWw N B+, O

179

(i naudi bl e) --
MR M NORA: The video --
MR. ANDERSON: -- concerns this?

MR. M NORA: The video M. Hood took,
we didn't get to hear any of what that was, so
unl ess he wants to have a silent video admtted,
we object to that.

MR ANDERSON:. What exhibit is Exhibit
472

MR. M NORA: Oh, Exhibit Nunber 2 under
t he groups.

MR. ANDERSON: | have sone concerns
allowing it, the video, in evidence. W did not
hear the video, and so I'mnot -- | do -- so I'm

not going to allow that in evidence because, for

what ever reason, we couldn't hear the -- we
couldn't hear the video. And | -- so we didn't
have, | guess, your witness, he testified about

the video, but | don't know what the video --
what was on the video.

And so M. Mnora, did not have an
opportunity to cross-exam ne the w tness about
the video, so I'mnot going to allow Exhibit 2,
which is a video, in evidence.

Ckay, go ahead.
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MR M NORA: And then objection to
Exhi bit 3.

MR, ANDERSON: What is Exhibit --

MR. M NORA: A decibel with photo with
t hree taken.

MR. ANDERSON. |I'msorry, what is
Exhi bit 3?

MR MNORA: It's a photo of a deci bel
nmeter on soneone's phone.

MR. ANDERSON: Yeah, |I'mnot going to
allow that in evidence. | don't know what

probative val ue that has.

MR M NORA: And then the --

MR. ANDERSON: (i naudi ble) --

MR MNORA: -- the rest of it is --

MR, ANDERSON: |'m sorry?

MR M NORA: W don't have an objection
to the rest of the group -- Protestant group's

PIF. They're all just settlenent agreenents and
MR. ANDERSON: Al l right.
MR. M NORA: -- (inaudible).
MR. ANDERSON:. All right. So w thout
obj ection, we'll have Exhibit -- all right. So

--all right. There are two sets of exhibits.
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So which --

MR. M NORA: Yes.

MR. ANDERSON: -- exhibit were you --
wth these -- Exhibit 1 and whose -- which --
all right. Wose exhibit is Exhibit 1 through
9?

MR. SINKINS: Those are m ne.

MR. ANDERSON: And Exhibit 1 was in
whose exhibit, M. Mnora, that you objected to?

MR. M NORA: They put it in both of
theirs.

MR. ANDERSON: All right. Al right.
So exhibit -- well, Exhibit 1 doesn't really
matter. It's a part of the record, because as |
-- as stated before, it's in the case report,
and the case report is a part of the record.

And so all the exhibits are -- will be admtted
into evidence, with the exception of -- who --
we had Exhibit 2 and 3. Exhibit 2 -- where was
Exhi bit 2? \Which one of the exhibits was
Exhibit 2? Ws that in --

MR. M NORA: That was the --

MR. ANDERSON: | know what it is.
Whose exhibit was it in?

MR MNORA: In the group -- in the
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protestant group PIF.
MR, ANDERSON:  No, no --
MR SINKINS: It was ny exhibit.
MR. ANDERSON:. All right. So we're

going to -- I'mnot going to -- soin -- and I'm

sorry, Exhibit 3, whose exhibit was Exhibit 3
In?

MR. SINKINS: M ne al so.

MR. ANDERSON: All right. Al right.
So in the group of five or nore, we're going to
-- Wwe are going to -- in their exhibits, | am
noving into evidence Exhibit 1, Exhibit 4, 5, 6,
7, 8, 9.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunment was received into evidence as
Protestants' Exhibit No. 1.)

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunents were received into evidence as
Protestants' Exhibit Nos. 4-9.)

MR. ANDERSON: And for the ANC, |'m
novi ng into evidence Exhibit 1 through 7.

MR. M NORA: (bjection --

MR. ANDERSON. What -- yes, sir. \Wat

MR. M NORA: The ANC -- the ANC s
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Exhibit 3 is an email exchange between
Comm ssioner Florio and | (i naudible).

MR. ANDERSON: | apol ogi ze. So -- and
| apologize. So in the ANC s exhibits, |I'm
nmovi ng into evidence Exhibit 1, Exhibit 2,
Exhibit 4, 5, 6, 7.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunents were received into evidence as ANC
Exhi bit Nos. 1-2.)

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to
docunents were received into evidence as ANC
Exhi bit Nos. 4-7.)

MR. ANDERSON: You did say, M. Mnora,
that you didn't have any other -- you did not
have any other objections, okay? You did say
t hat .

Al right. But -- so the record is now
cl ear what docunents were noved into evidence.
Ckay. Al right. Fine.

Are the parties -- we need to -- it's
al nrost 6:00, so | need to nake sure we nove
t hrough this.

So, M. Mnora, you ready for closing?

MR M NCORA: Yes, sir. Thank you. As

| say, it's a very good thing that there's | ong-
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term busi nesses |i ke Trade that have been
provi di ng jobs, sales tax revenue, and pl aces
that actually have fun in the city for over ten
years, and by doing so, all wthout a single
ABCA viol ation. Trade has been a great

nei ghbor. W' ve worked with the community and
the ANC. This has grown and expanded t hroughout
Its operations.

Ways to control and retain sound, we're
nmoving into the designs and expansions fromthe
begi nning. Trade has and conti nues to inpl enent
additional sound mtigation neasures in the
sunmer garden, not because they have to, because
they're commtted community nenbers and want to
make sure everyone has a good experience,
whet her you're a patron or |iving nearby.

So we'll say real property values were
not an issue here. And while we're -- in the
protest. But while we are synpathetic to sone
of the disturbances the protestants may be
experiencing, they can't be attributed directly
to Trade. There are nultiple establishnments in
the vicinity, including Black Wiskey directly
above Trade, and Players Club on the corner with

Its seven-floor sunmer garden. G ven that the
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residents' own -- a resident's ear alone really
can't discern the source of sounds within the
alley, soit's just not possible to attribute
anything -- everything they're experiencing to
Tr ade.

Moreover, to the extent that it's
unanplified human voices, that's not a violation
of the DDC. Code. That's exenpt fromthe sound
regulations. This licensee has a |long history
of outdoor hours until about 2:00 and 3:00 in
the norning, and a pristine track record goi ng
back over a decade, show ng its appropriateness
for the section of the district. Protestants
failed to attri bute any sound, noise directly
here to Trade. And to the extent that it's
unable to identify any voices, there's really no
action for the Board to take.

It's for the foregoing reasons we're
asking that the Board -- to renew Trade's
application as filed and w thout any further
conditions or restrictions.

ANDERSON:  Thank you.

M NORA: Thank you.

ANDERSON: M. Sinkins?

SINKINS: Yeah -- yes, thank you,

2223
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Chai rman. The protestants request that the
Board require any approval of this application
to be conditioned upon a reduction in the
occupancy or the reduction in the hours of
operation of the summer garden. M clients are
not opposed to Trade. As you heard through
their testinony, a nunber of them have
frequented Trade, had good relations with M.
Guggennos in Trade, and value the contributions
It nmakes to the neighborhood. But those
contributions should not cone at the price of ny
clients being able to enjoy their hones.

We're not asking for much. W're
asking for Trade to nodify their operations to
the manner that they were prior to the
expansion. W want the residents of the
WIllison Condom ni um and ot her nearby residences
to be able to live and enjoy their unit that
allows themto go to sleep at night, to sl eep
peacefully at night, to be able to have normal
conversations in their unit, and not have to
engage in technological attenpts to nodify the
way that Trade affects their way of life.

So for these reasons, what we're asking

for is for the Board, when it makes its deci sion
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on the Trade application, to deny it as applied
for. And if you're going to approve it, approve
it wwth nodifications to reduce the occupancy

| evel of the summer garden and reduce the hours
of operation. Thank you very nuch.

MR, ANDERSON. Ckay. Al right. The
record is now closed. Do the parties wish to
file proposed findings of facts and concl usi on
of law, or waive their right to do so? |[|'ll ask
the protestants first.

MR. SINKINS: Well, we'd Iike the Board
to render a finding that the noise |levels --

MR. ANDERSON: No, no. Wsat | -- what
|"masking is that do you want the Board to nake
a decision on the record, or do you want to wait
until the transcript is --

MR SINKINS: | don't -- I'd like to
wait until the transcript is conplete. Thank
you.

MR. ANDERSON:  All right. So -- all
right. So therefore, you're -- you want to do
proposed findings of facts and concl usi on of
| aw, neani ng that --

MR SINKINS: That's right.

MR. ANDERSON. -- you will get the
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transcript, read --

MR. SINKINS: Yeah, we'd like to
receive the transcript, reviewit, and then
provi de findings of fact and concl usions of |aw
to the Board.

MR. ANDERSON. That's fine. Then the
transcripts will be available in approxi mately
three weeks. The proposed findings of facts and
conclusion of laww Il be due to the Board 30
days upon recei pt of the transcript.

MR. SINKINS: Ckay.

MR. ANDERSON: If the parties -- if the
parties change their m nd, please advise the
Board as soon as possible that you changed your
mnd and we will issue a decision within 90
days. So next -- so within 90 days after the
proposed finding of fact and concl usion of |aw,
once they're issued, we wll issue a decision
within 90 days. Al right. So let ne close the
record. O let nme bring closure to this case
t hen.

Al right. As chairperson of the
Al cohol i ¢ Beverage and Cannabis Board for the
District of Colunbia, in accordance with D.C

O ficial Code Section 2-575 of the Open Meetings
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Act, | nove that ABC Board hold and cl ose the
nmeeting for the purpose of seeking | egal advice
fromour council on Case Nunber 25-PRO 00098
Trade, pursuant to D.C. Oficial Code Section
2-575B4A of the Open Meetings Act and
del i berati ng upon Case Nunber 25-PRO 00098 Trade
for the reason cited in D.C. Oficial Code
Section 2-575B13 of the Open Meetings Act. |Is
there a second?

MR. MEADOWAS: M. Meadows. | second
t he notion.

MR. ANDERSON: M. Meadows has seconded
the notion. | will now take a roll call vote on

the notion before us now that it's been

seconded.
Ms. Quinn?
M5. QU NN M. Quinn. | agree.
MR, ANDERSON: M. Meadows?
MR, MEADOAG: M. Meadows. | agree.
MR, ANDERSON: M. Jones?
MR JONES: M. Jones. | agree.
MR. ANDERSON: M. Anderson. | agree.

As the notion has passed 4-0, | hereby give
notice that ABC Board will recess its

proceedings to hold a closed neeting pursuant to
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Section 2-575 of the Open Meetings Act. Thank
you very much for your time and attendance
today. The Board takes this matter under
advi senent. Thank you.

MR. M NORA: Thank you.

MR. ANDERSON: And let ne now cl ose the
record for the day. As chairperson of the
Al cohol i ¢ Beverage and Cannabis Board for the
District of Colunbia, in accordance with Title
3, Chapter 45, Ofice of Open Governnent, | nove
t hat ABC Board hold and cl ose neeting on May --
on March 18th for the purpose of discussing and
heari ng reports concerni ng ongoi ng or planned
I nvestigations of alleged crimnal or civil
m sconduct or violations of |aw or regul ations
and seeking | egal advice or |egal counsel on the
Board's investigative agenda, |egal agenda,
i censing agenda for March 18th, as published in
the D.C. Register on March 13th. |s there a

second?

MR. JONES: M. Jones. | second the
not i on.

MR. ANDERSON: M. Jones has seconded
the notion. | will now take a roll call vote on

the notion before us now that it has been
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seconded.

Ms. Quinn?

M5. QUINN. M. Quinn. | agree.

MR. ANDERSON: M. Meadows?

MR, MEADOWAS: M. Meadows. | agree.

MR, ANDERSON: M. Jones?

MR JONES: M. Jones. | agree.

MR. ANDERSON: M. Anderson. | agree.
As it -- as the notion has passed, | hereby

give notice that ABC Board will hold this cl osed
neeting pursuant to the Qpen Meetings Act.
Notice will also be posted on ABC Board heari ng
room bul l etin board, placed on electronic
cal endar, and ABCA's website, and published in
D.C. Register in as tinely a manner as
practical. Thank you very nuch. W are now
adj ourned for the day. | now ask all Board
menbers to return to executive session for
further devel opnent. Good afternoon.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter

went off the record at 6:06 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE

This is to certify that the foregoing transcript
was duly recorded and accurately transcri bed
under ny direction; further, that said
transcript is a true and accurate record of the
proceedi ngs; and that | am neither counsel for,
related to, nor enployed by any of the parties
to this action in which this matter was taken;
and further that | amnot a relative nor an
enpl oyee of any of the parties nor counsel

enpl oyed by the parties, and | am not
financially or otherwise interested in the

out cone of the action.

Manny Si skind
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